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Daiwa Associate Ho\dmgs Limited

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present to shareholders the
annual results of Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.

| am taking this opportunity to express our gratitude to the Group’s staff for their

contributions enabling the Group to work through a tough year.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2014, turnover of the Group was reported as
HK$618.3 million (2013: HK$547.9 million), representing an increase of 12.8%
when compared with last financial year. Gross profit increased by 27.8% to
HK$87.8 million (2013: HK$68.7 million).

. The earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
were HK$17.6 million (2013: HK$23.0 million), representing a decrease
of HK$5.4 million when compared to the last corresponding period. After
the exclusion of net gain from disposal and the provision for impairment
of property, plant and equipment of HK$10.8 million in last year, the
operating profit (EBITDA) for this year increased by HK$5.4 million.

o The operating profit (EBIT) of the Group was HK$9.0 million (2013:
HK$16.7 million), representing a decrease of HK$7.7 million when
compared to the last corresponding period. After the exclusion of the
net gain from disposal and provision of impairment of property, plant and
equipment of HK$10.8 million in last year, the operating profit (EBIT) for

this year has actually increased by HK$3.1 million.

. The net profit of the Group was HK$8.3 million (2013: loss HK$170.7
million), representing an increase of HK$179.0 million when compared to

the last year.

The Board of Directors does not recommend any payment of a final dividend.

During the year, the Group did not declare any interim dividend.
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At 31 March 2014, the Group’s current assets amounted to HK$279.4 million
(2013: HK$272.7 million) and the shareholders’ equity were HK$228.2 million
(2013: HK$212.9 million). The current liabilities were HK$210.4 million (2013:
HK$225.1 million).

The inventory level increased to HK$115.5 million (2013: HK$98.0 million).
Average stock turnover was around 79 days based on closing stock at 31
March 2014 (2013: 75 days). The trade receivables (excluding notes receivable)
increased by HK$1.6 million to HK$89.4 million (2013: HK$87.8 million).

Because of the low utilization of banking facilities, the year end cash and bank
balances were HK$55.5 million (2013: HK$60.2 million). Total available banking
facilities of the Group were approximately HK$155.7 million (2013: HK$190.1
million), of which HK$42.7 million was available for use (2013: HK$75.1 million).
There were no finance lease obligations outstanding as at 31 March 2014
(2013: HK$1.2 million). At 31 March 2014, the Company committed corporate
guarantees of HK$261.0 million (2013: HK$293.0 million) in favor of banks for
the granting of banking facilities to certain subsidiaries. The gearing ratio, which
was defined as total borrowings after netting off cash and cash equivalents (net
debt), to total capital (being total equity plus net debt) was 18% (2013: 20%).

The Group’s assets were mostly financed by shareholders’ equity, trade
payables and bank borrowings. Trade payables were repayable within one year.
Bank borrowings comprised trade financing repayable within one year and term
loans repayable in installments of 2 to 6 years based on original contractual
maturity.

Borrowings were mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars to
prevent currency risk. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars, Canadian dollars and Renminbi. The Group
matched the payment and receipts of foreign currency arising from routine
purchases and sales to control and minimize the financial costs and exchange
risk. Most of the Group’s borrowings were interest bearing at floating rates which
were based on the Hong Kong HIBOR rate or London LIBOR rate. As substantial
part of trade payables and bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong
and US dollars, the exchange risk for the Group was not expected to be
material. The Group did not use derivative financial instruments for speculative
purpose.

3 aRNEmEERAERQA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



President’s Statement

REFER SERNARESRKRGE R
43,000,000k E1EO0.108 T 2 & %Hxﬂx@ CERER
0.298 T 7 SRIEE 1T - £E 511,982,000 BLlE—
MEEESRR SERAFEWRERARTSEE
A B AR

EROER A=

77

REBYHIRATEERET

— EABMEREHES -

il

— ETEMRBEERE, &

- B e SRR -

RBEMA - KFEEITRMEBRBOER > WE—F
HER B E mAREE N R pATE

18 A BB AR H R RS

o B F R E 1)\3F Bot&BT(ZE—=
FRANTNABARTESRT)  BEFRMALEIZM
’nzji%ﬁ—"

HAD BEBRRER - AERESRTRNEAER
1% BREFRAOEE N FRER - FEHEAREN
BERE - RELROERI  REBEEKINER AR

BHTEFIMER  UEBNEXBRENEMLE
REER -

AEETAABB TSEALENEHEATKER

REBHES - ERDEERIT BRE - RS- LS
BERE - BEME TR KE 2ER- 2T
B FREM  PREMREMEES -

eENMEEERAERAA 4

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

In the reported year, the Group successfully completed a placing of 43,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital at a subscription price of
HK$0.29 per placing share, raising net proceeds of HK$11,982,000 for working
capital purpose. The Group did not repurchase any ordinary shares in the open

market.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

The Group was engaging in the following major business:

— Personal Computer Products Distribution;

— Electronic Products Manufacturing; and

— Electronic Components Distribution

In the reported year, the Group focused on the development of new business
network and further improvement on gross profit and cost control on existing

product lines.

Personal Computer Products Distribution

Turnover of this segment was HK$282.2 million (2013: HK$268.6 million) which

represented an increase of 5.1% in the reported year.

Business in this segment has shown a steady growth during the year. The Group
has extended the business from the main stream personal computers market
to the increasing demand for tablets, portable devices and peripherals. Besides
its core market, the Group has successfully developed new businesses in mass
merchants market. Both the turnover and gross profit contribution from mass

merchant business was increasing steadily.

The Group has been in the market of personal computer systems and computer
parts in North America for more than 20 years. Products in this segment include
motherboards, display cards, hard disk drives, optical storage devices, computer
cases, power supplies, software, memories, desktop computers, notebook

computers, tablet computers and computer accessories.
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Electronic Products Manufacturing

The turnover of this segment increased to HK$159.1 milion (2013: HK$78.3
million), representing an increase of 103.2% when compared to last year.

After the elimination of less profitable products in last year, the Group was
enlightened by the higher profit margin and longer business commitment product
lines. The significant increase in turnover and profit contribution in this segment
indicated that the re-engineering of the manufacturing business was in the right

direction.

Through the efforts of new managements team, streamlining of production lines,
stronger quality control, logistic and cost control system, the profitability and

efficiency of this segment was further enhanced.

The Group has concentrated in the professional production of telecommunication
modules in infrastructures as well as assembly for industrial and commercial
purpose products. The plant is equipped with high speed SMT production lines
with nitrogen filled reflow furnaces and precision quality assurance equipment in

antistatic clean room.

Electronic Components Distribution

Turnover of the electronic components distribution segment was HK$177.0
million (2013: HK$201.0 million) representing a decrease of 11.9% when

compared with the last financial year.

After the disposal of the low margin distribution business during the past year,
the Group has successfully recovered the distribution business by gaining new
distributorships and new customer base. The sales team performed well in
both existing and new brands. Turnover of new brands grew satisfactory with
improved profit margin. The Group had deployed more engineering resources as

well as sales and marketing force to break into new markets.

Business in this segment is mainly act as authorized distributor of various
electronics components of renowned brands such as Rohm, Lite-on Arnold
Magnetics, Diodes, SDC, Everlight, PFC Device, AEM, Micro-metal, Chino-Excel
Technology (CET) and the Group’s own brand COS and TIP. Major customers
are manufacturers located in Hong Kong and the PRC. Products of this segment
include diodes, transistors, integrated circuits (IC), power management devices,

optical-electronics and illuminations as well as discrete components.

5 aRNEmEERAERQA
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

The Group has more than 30 years of experience in the business of distributing
of electronic components. In addition to its solid base in Hong Kong, the Group
is one of the pioneer distributors to penetrate into the PRC market. The Group
has built up strong sales network and good logistics foundation in major PRC
cities. The performance of Shenzhen, Shanghai and Beijing sales offices are
outstanding among competitors. In order to explore new business opportunities,
the Group has further strengthened the engineering capability in providing total
solutions to customers and will continue to bring in new principal suppliers to

sustain future growth.

FUTURE PROSPECT

The Group will continue to develop product lines of low risk and higher gross
margin business with consistent demands. The Group is also confident that
each of the segments will continue the improvement in cost effectiveness and

concentrate in the enhancement of management systems.

In the segment of Electronic Components Distribution, the Group will focus
on the development of new products markets and establishment of new
distributorship with new principal suppliers. In addition to the existing product
lines, the segment will also target the markets of optical electronics, illuminations
and power management devices which are expected to have active growth
in the coming years. The Group is improving the management of inventories,
customer base and distribution process by the introduction of new software and

management control.

Business in the personal computer business is experiencing growth in the mass
merchants market. The Group keeps sourcing to act as authorized distributor of
new brands and suppliers. With the daily increase in demand from mega stores,
this segment will build up sourcing points in Mainland China to procure more
varieties of products with good quality and pricing. The Group will continue to
diversify the personal computer distribution business to further penetrate into the
field of tablet computers and smartphone accessories. The consolidation of the
number of competitors in the market will provide good opportunity for growth of

the segment.

In Electronics Products Manufacturing segment, the Group is developing new
products with niche technologies. The Group has already received confirmed
consistent orders from renown customers and expects that these products
will bring in new contributions in the coming fiscal year. Order forecast from
existing customers are growing steadily. The Group expects that business in this

segment will have a constant growth in the coming year.
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As both labor cost and administrative cost are increasing substantially in PRC,
the Group will improve the production process, inventory control, logistic and
management system by applying new equipment and new ERP software system.
To reduce the number of manual labors, the Group has also started to build
new semi-automatic machine to replace the hand assembling procedures and to

eliminate the impact of increasing labor cost.

To release the funding and resources tied in non-current assets and to save
management cost, the Group is in discussion with a third party on the disposal
of the production land and building in Heyuan. The Group will enjoy a rent
free period for some years to continue to use the production plant after the
disposal. The disposal will further increase the effective working capital which will

strengthen the financial status of the Group.

The management believes that in the coming fiscal year, the Group will start a

new phase of steady growth.

EMPLOYEES

At 31 March 2014, after discontinuing the business segment in consumer
electronics, the Group employed a total of approximately 760 employees (31

March 2013: 800 employees) located in Hong Kong, Canada and PRC.

The Group’s remuneration policy is in line with the prevailing market practices
and is determined on the basis of performance and experience of the individual.
Sales personnel are remunerated by salaries and incentives in accordance
with the achievement of their sales target. General staff are offered year-end
discretionary bonuses, which are based on the divisional performance and
individual appraisals. The Group also provides a Mandatory Provident Fund or

ORSO scheme and medical benefits to all Hong Kong employees.

The Group is committed to devoting more resources in providing internal and
external training to the employees. In addition to sending staff to participate in
seminars and lectures, the Group continues recommending that qualified staff
take part in professional courses such as the ISO9000, TS16949 and Six-Sigma
Quality Systems. The training programs not only enhance employees’ career
development and professional knowledge, but also contribute to upgrading the

management system of the Group.
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

the Group for the last five years.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of

—_E—mN 2h== —_ZET—= —_F— 2=
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
FET FHET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(&71) (&%) (&E5)

(restated) (restated) (restated)

618,300 547,916 643,016 713,445 557,409
— 500,246 765,601 1,067,565 1,070,968
618,300 1,048,162 1,408,617 1,781,010 1,628,377
8,342 (171,008) 8,786 8,194 (81,630)
438,894 438,598 817,513 868,325 881,902
210,711 225,692 439,049 497,306 520,902
228,183 212,906 378,464 371,019 361,000
43,724 39,424 31,5639 30,394 30,394
184,244 173,267 346,976 340,651 330,252
227,968 212,691 378,515 371,045 360,646
215 215 (51) (26) 354
228,183 212,906 378,464 371,019 361,000

Note: Turnover of each of the previous periods included in the five year financial summary

has been restated as a result of the discontinued operations for the year ended 31

March 2013.
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HFEBEBRE FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)

EERE
Net Assets
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HK$ million

S
Turnover
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HKS$ million
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TURNOVER BY
PRINCIPAL BUSINESS SEGMENT FOR 2014
(EPNGY 3t

Personal computer
products distribution (46%)

TFERNE
Electronic products
manufacturing (25%)

B TR S
Electronic components
distribution (29%)

TE-NFERGES S 2EXE
TURNOVER BY
GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT FOR 2014

BM HAbZMBIR
Europe (17%) Other Asian Countries (2%)
BE
Hong Kong (14%)
JEZEM
North America
(46%)
AR B K B
Mainland China (21%)
R
Turnover
e —F—=
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ES Rt Lo Electronic components distribution 176,993 201,014
ETFEMRE Electronic products manufacturing 159,062 78,280
&L B B A 8 Personal computer products distribution 282,245 268,622
618,300 547,916
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
good corporate governance standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance the shareholders’
value.

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended
31 March 2014, save for the deviations discussed below. The Board will
continuously review and improve the corporate governance practices and
standards of the Company to ensure that business activities and decision making
processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Model
Code”).
directors of the Company have confirmed that they have fully complied with the

Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company, the

required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention paid
to the growth and financial performance of the Group. The principal functions of
the Board are to:

(1) establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

2) determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance objectives
of the Group;

(3) monitor management performance;

(4) approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding proposals,
key funding and investment proposals;

(5) oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,
risk management, financial reporting and compliance; and

(6) assume responsibility for corporate governance.

11 aRNEmEERAERQA
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HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000
Nil - HK$1,000,000

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board is collectively responsible for the leadership, control and overall
strategic development of the Group, as well as overseeing internal control,
financial performance, overall management and operations of the Group. The
Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who is responsible
for implementing the Group’s business strategies and managing the daily
business operations.

The Board comprises five executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year to approve annual
and interim results, and to review the business operation and the internal control
system of the Group. Apart from these regular meetings, Board meetings are
also held to approve major or special issues.

Five Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Given the nature and business objectives of the Company, the Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
of the Company. List of directors and their biographical details are set out on
pages 24 to 27.

REMUNERATION PAID TO MEMBERS OF KEY
MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration paid to members of key management (including all
Directors and senior management as disclosed in section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this report) for the year ended
31 March 2014 fell within the following bands:

A
Number of individual
2014 2013
1 —
- 2
1 —
7 6
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

Members of the Board, number of Board meetings held and the attendance of

each member during the year are set out as follows:

BE-Z-—NF=ZA=+—HLEE
HEBTHEERH
Meeting attended/held during
the year ended 31 March 2014

BRXE
58 General
Members of the Board Board Meeting
Executive directors
Mr. LAU Tak Wan (President) 5/5 11
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky (Vice-president) 5/5 1
Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho 5/5 1/1
Mr. CHONG Wing Kam, James
(appointed on 23 July 2013) 3/5 1
Mr. FUNG Wai Ching
(appointed on 23 July 2013) 3/5 11
Mr. WAN Chor Fai
(resigned on 1 September 2013) 1/5 0/0
Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 5/5 1/1
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 5/5 1/1
Dr. LIU Ngai Wing 5/5 11

BOARD MEETINGS

The executive directors meet on a regular basis to discuss the ordinary business
of the Company. Board meetings are held to discuss the overall development,
operation, financial performance, interim results, annual results and other
business of the Company that requires approval from the Board. Reasonable
notice has been given to Board members to give them an opportunity to attend.
All Board members are provided with relevant documentation covering the
subject matter of the board meetings. Board members are also provided with
sufficient information in a timely manner to review and consider matters to be
discussed at Board meetings. The Company utilizes telephone conferencing for
Directors who are not able to attend in person.

13 aRNEmEERAERQA
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued)

During the Year, all Directors discharged their duties in a dedicated, diligent and
proactive manner with reasonable prudence. They have executed their duties
in accordance with statutory requirements, the Company’s Bye-laws (the “Bye-
laws”) and the Listing Rules. All Directors have exercised due care in monitoring
corporate matters of the Company and provided sufficient time and attention to
all significant issues of Group.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. LAU Tak Wan is the Chairman of the Board and the president of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, the role of the president and the chief
executive officer is the same. The Board considers that the present structure
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows for efficient
and effective business planning and execution. Hence, the Board believes that it
is in the best interest of the shareholders of the Company that Mr. LAU Tak Wan
will continue to assume the roles of the Chairman of the Board and the president
of the Company. However, the Company will review the current structure as and
when it becomes appropriate in future.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors bring independent judgment to the
Board. Each independent non-executive director sent a written confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Company.
Based on these confirmations, the Board considers that all independent non-
executive directors have met the qualifications of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

for the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Directors are appointed in accordance with their qualifications and experience
to ensure they are capable to perform their duties and protect the interests of
the stakeholders. Every newly appointed director receives a comprehensive and
formal introduction to ensure that he/she has an understanding of the Group’s
business and operation, his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing

Rules and relevant regulatory requirements, and the Model Code.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

Under the Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors shall be
appointed for a specific term and be subject to re-election. The independent
non-executive directors of the Company have not appointed for a specific term
of office, which constitutes a deviation from A.4.1 of the Code. However, all
independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those set out in the Code.

According to the provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the next following general meeting of the Company, and in the case of an
addition to the existing Board, until the next following Annual General Meeting
of the Company. Furthermore, each Director, including those appointed for
a specific term or holding office as Chairman and/or Managing Director, are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
would provide a comprehensive induction package covering the summary of
the responsibilities and legal obligations of a director of a Hong Kong listed
company, the Company’s constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional development to
Directors would be arranged whenever necessary.

During the year, all directors and Company Secretary confirmed that they have
complied with the code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the board on, among other things, the Company’s policy and structure for
the remuneration of all directors and senior management of the Company
and review the specific remuneration packages for all executive directors and
senior management of the Company. The remuneration package for Directors
and senior management are determined by reference to the skill, experience,
performance, contribution to the Company and the prevailing market condition.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continueq)

HEERRE

ZEEEENRY

No. of Meeting Attended/

Members of Remuneration Committee: No. of Meeting
Independent non-executive directors

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing (Chairman) 11

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 11

Executive director
Mr. LAU Tak Wan 11

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to:

(1) review the structure, size and composition of the Board (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular basis and make

recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

2) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorships;
(3) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(4) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the chairman and the president (chief executive);

and

(5) where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive Director at the general meeting, the
Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting why they believe the individual should be elected and

the reasons why they consider the individual to be independent.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee monitors and reviews the diversity policy of the
Board members. The Company recognizes that diversity of the Board members
provides a balance of skill, experience and professional knowledge for the
Company’s business and future development. The diversity policy is achieved by
consideration of various aspects, including but not limited gender, age, cultural
and educational backgrounds, professional knowledge and experience with the
business of the Company. The ultimate decision on selection of candidates will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected candidate will bring

to the board.

HEEERE

ZEEEERY

No. of Meeting Attended/

Members of Nomination Committee: No. of Meeting
Executive director

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (Chairman) 11

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 11
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 11

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of reference.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group and providing advice
and recommendations to the Board.

Audit Committee is also authorised to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant

experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the year ended 31 March 2014.

17 aRNEmEERAERQA
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Members of the Audit Committee, number of Audit Committee meetings held

and the attendance of each member during the year are set out as follows:

HEERRE

EREEEERRY

No. of meetings

attended/No. of

Audit Committee

Members of the Audit Committee meetings held

Independent non-executive directors:

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan 2/2
Dr. LIU Ngai Wing 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed the following duties:

(1) reviewed the annual financial statements with the auditor and reviewed
the unaudited interim financial statements, with recommendations to the

Board for approval;

(2) reviewed the changes in accounting standards and policies as well as

assessment of potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

(3) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and discussed the relevant
issues including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk

management functions;

(4) reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory

requirements;

(5) considered and recommended the appointment, re-appointment and

approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor;

(6) discussed with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and

reporting obligations; and

(7) reviewed and monitored external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standards.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board also ensure the timely publication of the

financial statements of the Group.
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor of the Company,
provided the following services to the Group and their respective fees charged
are set out as follows:

WE &R

Type of services Fees charged
FET

HK$’000

Audit services for the Group 1,900
Taxation services 34
Total 1,934

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods in
accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements. In preparing the financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2013 and for the year ended
31 March 2014, the directors have adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently. The financial statements for the reporting year have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on
pages 36 to 37 in the annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and is
committed to managing business risks and maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets. The effectiveness of the internal control system was also

discussed on a semi-annual basis with the Audit Committee.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)

The Group’s internal control system encompasses its policies, processes, tasks,
and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

(1) to facilitate its effective and efficient operation by allowing it to respond
appropriately to significant business, operational, financial, compliance
and other risks with a view of achieving business objectives. This
includes the safeguarding of assets from inappropriate use or from loss
and fraud and ensuring that liabilities are identified and managed;

(2) to help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal or external reporting;
and

(3) to help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations, and

also with internal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance of no material mis-statement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders are encouraged to maintain direct communication with the
Company. Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may write directly
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of
business, 11th Floor, Block G, East Sun Industrial Centre, 16 Shing Yip Street,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, or they may send emails to daiwa@daiwahk.com. The
Company Secretary will direct the questions to the Board.

Any questions regarding the shareholdings of the shareholders can be addressed
directly to the Company’s branch registrar, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and reviewed
on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairman of Board committees or their
delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditors will attend
AGMs to answer shareholders’ questions.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

Should shareholders wish to call a special general meeting, it must be convened
according to the Company’s Bye-laws. In summary:

(a) Any 2 or more shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company can, in writing to the Board, request a special
general meeting to be called by the Board to transact any business
specified in such request.

(b) The signed written request, which should specify the purpose of
the meeting, should be delivered to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong. If the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting within twenty-one days after receiving the request, the
shareholders themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company communicates to its shareholders through announcements and
annual and interim reports published in its website http://www.daiwa.com.hk/
news.phtml. Shareholders may put enquiries to the Board in writing sent to
the principal office of the Company at 11th Floor, Block G, East Sun Industrial
Central, 16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The directors,
Company Secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
respond to enquiries from shareholders promptly. All shareholders are also
encouraged to attend general meetings of the Company to discuss matters
relating to the Group. At general meetings of the Company, the Directors answer
questions from the shareholders.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change to the Company’s Memorandum of Association
and Bye-laws (“Constitutional Documents”) during the year ended 31 March
2014. A latest version of the Constitutional Documents can be downloaded from
the websites of the Company or the Stock Exchange.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Tak Wan

President

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the electronic components distribution, electronic products
manufacturing, and personal computer products distribution. During the year
ended 31 March 2013, the Group abandoned its operations in the manufacturing
of consumer electronics, and disposed of a major portion of electronic
components distributions. These constituted discontinued operations and further

details of which are set out in notes 5 and 34 of the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to operating profit by

reportable segments for the year is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 38.

The Board of Directors did not recommend payment of final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2014. No interim dividend was declared or paid for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 are set out

in note 37 to the financial statements.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in note 17 to the financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 31 to the financial

statements.
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RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from reserves during
the year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the Company does not have reserve
available for distribution.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the
realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$20,000 (2013: HK$10,000) during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws and
there was no restriction against such right under the laws in Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five years until 31 March 2014 is set out on pages 8 to 9.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, sales to the five largest customers of the
Group in total accounted for approximately 20% of the Group’s total turnover,
with the largest customer accounted for about 10%. The five largest suppliers
of the Group together in total accounted for approximately 21% by value of the
Group’s total purchases during the year, with the largest supplier accounted for
about 6%.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan (President)

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky (Vice-president)

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho

Mr. CHONG Wing Kam, James (appointed on 23 July 2013)
Mr. FUNG Wai Ching (appinted on 23 July 2013)

Mr. WAN Chor Fai (resigned on 1 September 2013)

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing

Mr. Lau Tak Wan, Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky and Dr. Barry John Buttifant retire
by rotation in accordance with clause 99 of the Company’s bye-laws and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The terms of office of the directors, including the independent non-executive
directors, are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-
laws.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. LAU Tak Wan, aged 64, is the founder and the President of the Group. Mr.
Lau graduated from Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong
Baptist University) in Sociology and has more than 30 years’ management
and production experience in the electronics industry. Prior to founding the
Group, Mr. Lau had over 6 years’ experience in running his own business in
the electronics industry. He is responsible for the overall corporate planning,
strategic development and marketing of the Group.

Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky, aged 57, is the spouse of Mr. LAU Tak Wan.
Ms. Chan is the Vice-president of the Group. Also she is the Director of
Administration and Finance responsible for administration, human resources and
finance of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 1998, Ms. Chan has over 20
years of experience in accounting and financial management and at the same
time running her own business for more than 10 years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive directors (continued)

Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho, aged 58, is appointed as the Director of distribution of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s overall sales and marketing strategy
and the distribution of electronics components. Mr. Cheung joined the Group
since 1982 and has more than 30 years of experience in the field of electronic
components distribution in Hong Kong, China and North America. Mr. Cheung
was the pioneer of the Group to start the distribution of electronic components
in major cities in China since early 80’s and has established sales offices in
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Beijing, Shanghai and Chengdu.

Mr. Chong Wing Kam, James, aged 51, is the Vice President (manufacturing)
of the Group to oversee the manufacturing segment of the Group. Mr. Chong
graduated from DeVry Institute of Technology as Electronic Engineer in RF and
Telecom communication system. Mr. Chong is the Certified Engineering from
Ontario Association of Certified Engineering Technicians and Technologists
(OACETT). Mr. Chong is the Window NT and Novell Netware engineer, solid
foundation in 1ISO-9001 auditing, certified Six Sigma Green Belt of Certified
Member of Six Sigma Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Chong has more than 25 years
of operation experience in electronic industry. Prior to joining the Group in 2003,
Mr. Chong worked for various conglomerate in charge of the R&D, production,
material planning, Quality Management System, Process engineering, Public
data/voice network installation and implementation, Public transit data/voice
network tender, general management and budgeting.

Mr. Fung Wai Ching, aged 50, is the Assistant General Manager of the Group.
Mr. Fung was awarded the Degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy by City
University of Hong Kong in 1992. He is responsible for the finance function of
the Group. Before joining the Group in 1994, Mr. Fung had 9 year experience in
auditing and commercial accounting.

25 aRNEmEERAERQA

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Ht
T8>
%ﬁj
Dff
i

Report of the Directors

BEEREREEBAEZBAAER @)

BYFBTES

ZIRAE L BREST I R—NNRFEREEZE
ERBIIFNITES - ERAF LR BESBERER
RAIZBUFNTEE  ZAREBEBRERIHM L
o RIEAE LTINS B AT 4 ETE R RAB LS X 5T
T2 Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. X B
BETEREHEEER AR ZIFNTEF AT ——
Fit BRABLATESEEEEERARA(FEEE
FEDZERTES  URFEEEEEGRARH
EREEEDNITESE WH T —NFE - ABRZM
MARZES  ZEAAEIREBHERZMLET - £
BEAETR - —TF - AEEEREBRERARZH
TEZ - R-TZNF+A  ERABETEHARRER
(BB D 2EBVBRTES  BER_ZZN
F+-ACRZEEZEY - RMABSTEER - 2
AELEEREESHMESM(—MEESTAEL
FT)(TKLC]) Z =& K KLC Transactions Limited 22
FHEE c MIMAKLCHT - B(ABTHERTEE
HBHNTES  c NZETWOF+F  BRAETHE
Hsin Chong International Holdings Limited ~ % %4
#38 —H% - Hsin Chong International Holdings Limited
REFERAFELERBR(RN T LF+—AKER
SERE)RMEEERBATNMEEREEE(R_Z
ZNFENABFELESEBWE) EMA QA2 ERR
R ZRAELTNEREME LTATAIZCERES - £
BAETZRBZEDMEEERATZEEEGRA - &
RIZE—FE2-_TT - FHRANGEEMZIT(EE)
BRAGBI(TMRBIT) 2EFBLE  WR_TT-F
E-TTFHRE MBI 2 EB R EEERERM -
RINARMBITA - BREBBEBEERARBEEELL
BHANT  UEREBEEENRBEESERAA
TRt —F  BHEEHTHBEEESRESLEER
e BRAEBCENMYBKEBFABA=T=F&H -
ERNELTREFTARGHNAT  EEGHNAE -
Chartered Management Institute * HEEIRHEHE
LEBEEFZE 2 AREE - ERIELBEMANE
R REMER RS =F-AKET B LD
REBRTHEREBBLSMEE -

EMEEZERERAQA 26

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Barry John Buttifant, aged 69, is an independent non-executive Director
appointed by the Group in 1994. Dr. Buttifant is currently an independent non-
executive director of Giordano International Limited, which is publicly listed
company in Hong Kong. He also serves as a non-executive director of Global-
Tech Advanced Innovations Inc. (formerly known as Global-Tech Appliances,
Inc.), a NASDAQ company and China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Limited, a NYSE
listed public company. Dr. Buttifant is currently an independent adviser to MCL
Financial Group Ltd. From 2011 to 2014, he was an executive director of Hsin
Chong Construction Group (“HCCG”) and a non-executive director of Synergis
Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.
Dr. Buttifant rejoined IDT International Limited as a Chief Executive Officer in
July 2010. In October 2009, Dr. Buttifant was a director — corporate finance of
Mission Hills Group (“MHG”) and prior to this appointment, he was the consultant
to the Group since December 2008. Prior to joining MHG, Dr. Buttifant served
as a principal of KLC Kennic Lui & Company, a professional accounting firm,
and managing director of KLC Transactions Limited. Prior to joining KLC, Dr.
Buttifant was the executive director — finance of MHG. In December 2004,
Dr. Buttifant was the managing director of Hsin Chong International Holdings
Limited, a controlling shareholder of HCCG (which was acquired by MHG in
November 2007) and Synergis (which was acquired by HCCG in September
2008). Dr. Buttifant was an alternate director to both public companies. Dr.
Buttifant was an operating partner of Baring Private Equity Asia Limited. He was
also the managing director of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (“Wo Kee Hong”)
from 2001 to 2002 and was the Advisor to the board of directors of Wo Kee
Hong from 2002 to 2004. Prior to joining Wo Kee Hong, he was the managing
director of IDT International Limited for over 8 years and had worked for Polly
Peck Group and Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited for more than 11 years in
the capacity of finance director and managing director. He has over 34 years
of experience in corporate and financial management in HK. Dr. Buttifant is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (UK); the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; the Chartered Management
Institute (UK); the Hong Kong Management Association and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Dr. Buttifant, being a person distinguished in eminence and
by attainments, was admitted to the degree of Honorary Doctorate of Business
Administration (Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier University, United Kingdom,
in February 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors (continued)

Dr. LIU Ngai Wing, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in September 2004. Dr. Liu holds a PhD Degree in
Hotel and Tourism Management from the Hotel and Tourism Management
School of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008, a Doctor of Business
Administrative Degree from Curtin University of Technology in 2013, a Master
of Arts degree in China Studies from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2011, a Master of Arts Degree in Asian and International Studies
from City University of Hong Kong in 2013, a Master of Science degree in Global
Business from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2002, a Master of Science
Degree in Hotel and Tourism Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2001 and a Master Degree in Business Administration from the
Open University of Hong Kong in 1999. He is also an Associate Member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. From 10 September 2010, Dr. Liu is an
independent non-executive director of Dorsett Hospitality International Limited
(formerly known as Kosmopolito Hotels International Limited), which is public

listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in September 2004. Mr Choi was awarded Bachelor
of Laws Degree (LLB) by University of London in 1988 and Post-graduate
Certificate in Laws (PCLL) by University of Hong Kong in 1991. Mr Choi is the
sole proprietor of Messrs. Choi & Associates. Mr. Choi is a Solicitor of the Hong

Kong Special Administrative Region and a Solicitor of England and Wales.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company and these service contracts will continue thereafter until terminated by

either party for not less than three or six months’ prior written notice.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which cannot be
terminated by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the directors’ service contracts noted above and the connected
transactions noted as below, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required,
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
kept by the Company, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules, to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a) RAATIEREEOIOEBETZRINERE (a) Long position in the Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each
BRILER FTEIR
FrM BB R 2 BB
Number of issued ordinary shares/
underlying shares attached to derivatives
ERTEER
Ordinary shares in issue
BARER FEEER HitihE s mey
EENE Personal Mt Corporate Wz Other Total Btk
Name of directors interests Notes interests Notes interests interests Percentage
2GR %E
Mr. LAU Tak Wan 8,196,426 1 210,096,536 283 1,428,597 219,721,529 50.25%
R+
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky 4,571,426 1 210,096,536 283 5,053,567 219,721,529 50.25%
RERTE
Mr. CHEUNG Wai Ho 57,033 — — 57,033 0.013%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(a) Long position in the Company’s shares of HK$0.10 each (continued)

Notes:

1. 3,625,000 shares in the Company were jointly held by Mr. Lau and Ms.
Chan (the spouse of Mr. Lau).

2. 138,948,541 shares in the Company were beneficially owned by China
Capital Holdings Investment Ltd (“China Capital”). The issued share capital
of China Capital is 60% owned by Mr. Lau, and 40% owned by Ms. Chan.

3. 76,147,995 shares in the Company were beneficially owned by Leading
Trade Ltd (“Leading Trade”). The issued share capital of Leading Trade is
50% owned by Mr. Lau and 50% owned by Ms. Chan.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

(b) Shares of associated corporations of the company

Dominion International Limited, which is 50% owned by Mr. Lau, and
50% owned by Ms. Chan:

FEZERERELZRDEBE
Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

50,000

455,000

1,600,000

In addition, each of Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan beneficially owns 140,000 and
10,000 non-voting deferred shares respectively in Cosmotec Precision

Industrial Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors, chief
executives of the Company or their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required, pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register kept by the Company, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed

during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A subsidiary of the Group, Daiwa Distribution (Ontario) Inc., had entered into a
rental agreement in respect of office space in Canada on 1 June 2006 with a
company jointly owned by Mr. Lau Tak Wan and Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky for
the period from 1 June 2011 to 31 May 2014. Monthly rental paid for the office
premises is CAD15,133.72 (approximately HK$111,000). The agreement was

renewed for another 3-year term to 31 May 2017.

The above constituted a connected transaction under the Listing Rules. The
Directors are of the opinion that the above transaction was entered into on
normal commercial terms and on an arm'’s length basis; was fair and reasonable

so far as the shareholders of the Company, taken as a whole, are concerned.

The above connected transaction constituted an exempted connected

transaction under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had entered
into any connected transactions discloseable by the Company under the Listing

Rules during the year.
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Leading Trade Limited
China Capital Holdings Investment Limited
RIEERE

Mr. Ng Hung Sang
REBRZ T (RBELEZERE)

Ms. Ng Lai King, Pamela (spouse of Mr. Ng Hung Sang)

et

1. Leading Trade Limited 2 50% # 5 & 2115 & & £ AT
BB RSO% R ARGk TR - Bt R
BELEEER - Leading Trade Limited + 2|54 K
BR 2z + 39 % 1R B 5 76,147,995 » 219,721,529 [
219,721,529 IR AN R AN 2 #Edw ©

2. China Capital Holdings Investment Limited Z 60%

HHERBSELEMERRIAONER BRTRZ T
FiiER - At - RIEFH REEEH - China Capital
Holdings Investment Limited + 2175 4 & B& 22 5 Rll4#
13 A% A 133,948,541 ~ 219,721,529 £ 219,721,529
RARBIRAD 2 2 o

B LS RZE—MFE=A=+—8 ' ARFXK
EBAEABEARBDETRAS% HA EAB L
? EH RS IGDIF 336 KRz T2RRAM 2 #

BX

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following
parties (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company), had an interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
which are required to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 and Part XV of the SFO, or, who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the Group.

Interests in the shares of the Company

HEBRTRG
BERGHAE wEEI
k=3 Number of % of the total
Note shares held issued shares
76,147,995 17.42%
2 133,948,541 30.64%
42,914,698 9.81%
42,914,698 9.81%
Notes:
1. Leading Trade Limited is 50% owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan and 50% owned by
Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky. Accordingly, Leading Trade Limited, Mr. Lau and
Ms. Chan were deemed by SFO to be interested in 76,147,995, 219,721,529 and
219,721,529 shares of the Company.
2. China Capital Holdings Investment Limited is 60% owned by Mr. LAU Tak Wan and

40% owned by Ms. CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky. Accordingly, China Capital Holdings
Investment Limited, Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan were deemed by SFO to be interested in
138,948,541, 219,721,629 and 219,721,529 shares of the Company respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
interest representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company and
recorded in the register of Substantial Shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2014.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float

throughout the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 11 to 21.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive

directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Audit Committee provides an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of internal audit, internal controls
and risk evaluation. The Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT, Mr. CHOI Yuk Fan and Dr. LIU
Ngai Wing. Two meetings were held during the current financial year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold and redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.
AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
LAU Tak Wan
President

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAIWA ASSOCIATE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Daiwa Associate
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 38 to 138, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2014, and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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Continuing operations
Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income

Other gains, net

Provision for impairment of property, plant and

equipment

Net gain on disposal of land use rights, and

property, plant and equipment

Selling and distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance income

Finance costs

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued

operations

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests — discontinued

operations

Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/(loss)
attributable to equity holders of the

Company during the year

Basic and diluted
Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Kzt
Note

10
10

11

34

15

For the year ended 31 March 2014

= —T—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
618,300 547,916
(530,537) (479,197)
87,763 68,719
3,042 875
30 866

- (6,756)

- 17,529
(12,901) (10,224)
(68,886) (54,299)
9,048 16,710
942 854
(2,349) (1,732)
7,641 15,832
(2,480) (1,928)
5,161 13,904
3,181 (184,646)
8,342 (170,742)
5,161 13,904
3,181 (184,912)
8,342 (171,008)

- 266

8,342 (170,742)
HK1.24 cents HK3.81 cents
HKO0.76 cents HK(50.64) cents

The notes on pages 46 to 138 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Comprehensive income/(loss):

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Currency translation differences

Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of
subsidiaries

Available-for-sale financial assets:
— Fair value gain during the year
— Impairment during the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests — discontinued operations

For the year ended 31 March 2014

- —=—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
8,342 (170,742)
(5,378) (1,938)
— (8,403)

331 377

= 225
(5,047) (9,739)
3,295 (180,481)
114 12,568
3,181 (193,315)
3,295 (180,747)

— 266

3,295 (180,481)

NA6 EE 138 B 2 Wiz AE M BEHMER 2 EEIM °©  The notes on pages 46 to 138 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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et
Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 16
Property, plant and equipment 17
Investment properties 18
Land use rights 19
Other long-term assets 20
Available-for-sale financial assets 22
Deferred income tax assets 30
Current assets
Inventories 23
Trade and notes receivables 24
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
25
Cash and cash equivalents 26
Total assets
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital 31
Share premium
Reserves 32

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

As at 31 March 2014

—ZE—MN —ET—=
2014 2013
FET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
25,901 28,201
72,916 76,500
34,591 35,364
9,410 9,648
972 1,073
15,467 15,136
241 —
159,498 165,922
115,478 98,031
96,424 95,198
11,961 19,287
55,533 60,160
279,396 272,676
438,894 438,598
43,724 39,424
233,196 225,514
(48,952) (52,247)
227,968 212,691
215 215
228,183 212,906




Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 March 2014

—Z2—mn —F—=
2014 2013
&t FET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
=R LIABILITIES
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
RIEFSHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 30 273 253
BE Borrowings 27 - 321
273 574
REEE Current liabilities
BE Borrowings 27 105,528 113,947
JEH & 2K AR TR Trade payables 28 84,436 65,425
FEA B AR R HoAth FE < RRIB Accruals and other payables 29 18,043 44 256
JE TR K Tax payable 2,431 1,490
210,438 225,118
HeE Total liabilities 210,711 225,692
HmERREE Total equity and liabilities 438,894 438,598
REEEREE Net current assets 68,958 47,558
EEHABRRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 228,456 213,480
2|58 R 158 7% LAU Tak Wan CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
¥ Foa ElF e President Vice-President
R46 EE 138 B 2 B4 I T5HRE 2 B3R5 o The notes on pages 46 to 138 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

—Z2—m

As at 31 March 2014

—=_ =

Capital and reserves attributable to equity

holders of the Company
Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

LAU Tak Wan
President

2014 2013

k23 FET FHET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
37 44,715 44,715
37, 38(b) 140,542 128,886
185,257 173,601

25 141 157
26 182 166
323 323

185,580 178,924

31 43,724 39,424
233,196 225,514

32(b) (91,641) (91,309)
185,279 173,629

29 301 295
301 295

185,580 173,924

22 28

185,279 173,629

CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky
Vice-President

The notes on pages 46 to 138 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

DAERTE AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FEEEHIE
B
B B 2% E Non- ERBE
Share Share f&E #% controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Total interests equity
BT FET FET & FE7T &
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(Hiat31) (Hf:#352)
(Note 31) (Note 32)
At 1 April 2013 39,424 225,514 (52,247) 212,691 215 212,906
Comprehensive income:
Profit for the year — — 8,342 8,342 — 8,342
Other comprehensive (loss)/
income:
Currency translation differences — — (5,378) (5,378) — (5,378)
Fair value gains on available-
for-sale financial assets — — 33l 33l — 331
Total other comprehensive loss - — (5,047) (5,047) — (5,047)
Total comprehensive income — — 3,295 3,295 — 3,295
Transaction with owners:
Issuance of new shares
(Note 31) 4,300 7,682 — 11,982 — 11,982
At 31 March 2014
43,724 233,196 (48,952) 227,968 215 228,183

statements.

The notes on pages 46 to 138 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014

DNEEEFEE AERN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Je 42
B
(&N R 1D E Non- ERAE
Share Share e #% controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Total interests equity
FET FE7T FET T FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(K1:#31) (Hia#32)
(Note 31) (Note 32)
R-ZE——-—FWmA—H At 1 April 2012 31,539 218,476 128,500 378,515 (51) 378,464
SREEE Comprehensive loss:
FE(E518),/&H (Loss)/profit for the year - - (171,008) (171,008) 266 (170,742)
Hit44 (B1E) /Wi ©  Other comprehensive (loss)/
income:
HEHMB QR RiA Release of exchange reserve
REAR upon disposal of subsidiaries - - (8,403) (8,4083) - (8,4083)
SN E =5 Currency translation differences - = (1,938) (1,938) = (1,938)
HEESREE Fair value gains on available-
NFEE for-sale financial assets = = 377 377 = 377
HEESREE Impairment of available-for-sale
B R financial assets - - 225 225 - 225
Hitir & BB AE Total other comprehensive loss - - (9,739) (9,739) - (9,739)
SEB(ER) i Total comprehensive (loss)/
income = = (180,747) (180,747) 266 (180,481)
HERBEENRS Transaction with owners:
BATHBRFRD Issue of shares by rights issue
(M 31) (Note 31) 7,885 7,038 - 14,923 - 14,923
R-ZB—=F At 31 March 2013
=B=+—H 39,424 225,514 (52,247) 212,691 215 212,906
NA46 B E 138 B 2 AS 15k 2 &2y o The notes on pages 46 to 138 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

EMEEERER QA
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Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Interest paid
Interest received
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of land use rights and

property, plant and equipment
Settlement of retention arrangement in

respect of disposed subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, net

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue and placing of
shares
New bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Payment of capital element of finance lease
obligations

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
activities

Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and
bank overdrafts

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at
1 April

Effect of foreign exchange rate change on cash
and cash equivalents, net

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at
31 March

statements.

k23
Note

33(a)

33(b)

34

For the year ended 31 March 2014

—Z2—m

—=_ =

2014 2013
FET FHET
HK$7000 HK$'000
5,997 (66,165)
(2,349) (5,319)
942 880
(1,760) (3,215)
2,830 (73,819)
(4,224) (3,256)
114 22,073
(5,694) -
- 4,995
(9,804) 23,812
11,982 14,923
254,037 258,909
(265,987) (267,763)
(321) (1,149)
(289) 4,920
(7,263) (45,087)
60,160 105,444
(895) (197)
52,002 60,160

The notes on pages 46 to 138 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

31 March 2014

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda on 3 February 1994 as an exempted
company under Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 14 April 1994.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the electronic components distribution, electronic products
manufacturing, and the personal computer products distribution.

During the year, the Directors resolved to re-term the remaining
manufacturing segment of “Contract Electronic Manufacturing Services”
as “Electronic Products Manufacturing” to align with the current and
planned future operating functions of the existing manufacturing
operations.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30 June 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets which are carried
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Effect of adopting new accounting standards,
interpretation and amendments to existing
standards

The following new accounting standards, interpretation
and amendments to existing standards are relevant to
the Group’s operations and mandatory for its accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2013:

o HKAS 19 (2011)  “Employee benefits”

o HKAS 27 (2011)  “Separate financial statements”

o HKAS 28 (2011)  “Investments in associates and joint ventures”

o HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”
o HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities”
o HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

o Amendments
to HKAS 1
(Revised)

o Amendments to
HKFRS 7

“Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”

“Financial instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities”

o Amendmentsto  “Consolidated financial statements”

HKFRS 10
o Amendmentsto  “Disclosure of interests in other entities: Transition
HKFRS 12 guidance”

The adoption of these new accounting standards,
interpretation and amendments to standards did not have
any significant impact on the results and financial position
of the Group.

47 AN EERER A A
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2. EESTBRXRBE# 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 mEIEXE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) E 75 1 18 2] 7k 4 34 iy 7K 55 [ i (b) Standards, amendments and interpretation to
EEBERAPFER - HEE existing standards that are not yet effective and
B Z RT3 FE have not been early adopted by the Group
TEHE B mE R - 375 28 The following published standards, and amendments and
ZIEFTRREER_T—HF interpretation to existing standards are mandatory for the
MA—BRARZENEFF Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April
EoRHlETT - BAEEEIE 2014 and have not been early adopted by the Group:
S -

o BAMEREENE  SRIAY o HKFRS 9 “Financlal instruments™;
95t
o BENBALENE  BEEERE o HKFRS 14 “Regulatory deferral accounts™
145
o BAEHENERS SBIA - 2H- o Amendments to HKAS 32 “Financial instruments: Presentation - Offsetting
(B3T5) BHEBAEN financial assets and financial liabiiies;
SRAE
o BAGHENENY HEBEENELE o Amendments to HKAS 36 “Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
(B3TE) HBE' assets”;
o BENERSENET  BHEERAHRE o Amendments to HKFRS 7 “Mandatory effective date and transitional
FRERERE EMRE and HKFRS 9 disclosures;
i O]
)
o BEMBRSENE0 REEEGR o Amendments to HKFRS 10, “Investment entities”; and
¥ BRMKRS HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
BRI 10RRER (2011)
SETEAE TS
(20115)(B3T)
o /ﬁﬁﬁkfﬂiﬁ BZE HE'- o HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 “Levies™,
REZ1H
1 5{\:2 e — A —He ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
LA FR 18 HO 4 15 B R AE 2 January 2014
2 R-_ZE—RF—A—HB=% 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
LATE A 48 1) 68 FZ R RE AR R January 2015
8 ERBEHEHETE 9 Effective date to be determined
4 RZZTE—R"F—A—H=% 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
LATE A 48 1) 68 FZ R RE AR R January 2016
ESTERREALEHEN - 2 The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above
ELIRALERZEB T2 5N new standards, interpretation and amendments to
SEEEERTBARABRERK existing standards will not result in any significant impact
& o on the results and financial position of the Group.

AENMBEEERAERRQA 48
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31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

(a)

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

(i

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the fair value of non-controlling interest over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or
loss.
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31 March 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2. EESHHBEHBE» 2.

22 MEBATGE)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) BB B & (b) Separate financial statements
M B A 738 B 1R A A HBRRE Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
(BN - KA BIERE impairment, if any. Cost also includes direct attributable
WEESEBRA - B A& costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
FEBARRRE W& E KR accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
BARR received and receivable.
R B ERE KRS HANB Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
NAINEMEK AT sKnE required upon receiving dividends from these investments
B Rk IR B IR EE R if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
BirE W BHREPEIKRE QA of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
FEEEERE)NIKRAEE - if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
Rl A ZE 1 BT BB A R & 1ERE financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
AR o consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net

assets including goodwill.
(c) BERA (c) Associates

BeE R REMEASEHER
ERFEIMERGENE

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally

B BE M B20%E50% accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
RERNRE BEARKE 50% of the voting rights. Investment in associates are

& SHAAR - *ETJ“W?%“
A REBEIR AR AR -
AR T {5 1% 42 0 =k LMEM
ﬁ%?*ﬁ%ﬁz&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁﬂ
&E"J}E o A EHE

ﬂZ&ﬁ’P}%HﬁZEﬁEvEEﬁJ@EU
B o

ﬁuHﬁﬁé%%ﬁéﬁﬁ?&ﬁUﬁ@%
REBEATZEN, ABRLY
HﬂZHlEﬁﬁﬁﬁ“\Hﬁl 5 FERR
MEBBEEHR D BERE(E

B)e
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accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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31 March 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

Subsidiaries (continued)

(c) Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the impairment in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors that
make strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2. EESHHBEHBE» 2.

Daiwa A&souate Holdings Limited

2.4 INEEBE 2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) EEFI 2 & (a) Functional and presentation currency

AREBETE AR 2P BHRE ltems included in the financial statements of each of

Fr3| BB R BB A A& % the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of

FEZ X ELEREBACZE the primary economic environment in which the entity

B(IThee B ) Bt HEBAL - operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
EHUMBBRRABTER B financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
TLAARARZNEEE RARE (“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and the
Bz 2 E - Group’s presentation currency.

(b) RERAEE (b) Transactions and balances

INEZSRAR S B EkIER Foreign currency transactions are translated into the

EFFTEAERABRNRTESR functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing

BEBINEEE - £EHZER at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items

SEEME N RE KRG INE are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
SENEEEERBERER resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
ERBREEENELBEER from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
R AR © monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the income statement.

HETRRE RS SEYHE Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to

AR INE IR E W 2 R BB R borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
AHFIERT2HRARERA in the consolidated income statement within “finance
KA | o FTE E A INBIRE UL income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains
=EEEARAGHIBERFZ and losses are presented in the consolidated income
mAEIHglas — F5E] - statement within “other gains, net”.

E s 5 gl B E - 40 iR 4 5E Translation difference on non-monetary financial assets,
HEwoEATHEESREE such as equities classified as available for sale, are
ZIBE=Z%H BEEEMEE included in other comprehensive income.

I sk o

(c) EEFAA (c) Group companies
j) B & M B 5| AR & WS S [R] B9 BT The results and financial position of all the group entities
ﬁ%l;ﬁ\ﬁf ERLERERE (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary

B AR R B ) By AR AN B 7 economy) that have a functional currency different

MORIRIN T FARE A HRE from the presentation currency are translated into the

s presentation currency as follows:

(i) BHEFMEEBER 0] assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
ANBEEMEERZE presented are translated at the closing rate at the
EBEREENFELER date of that balance sheet;

EXRME
aNMEmEERERA A 54
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31 March 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(iif) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property is carried at cost, including related
transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The building portion of investment property is depreciated over a
period of 50 years.

Where the carrying amount of an investment property is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost mainly
represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land on
which various plant and buildings are situated for a prescribed
period from the date the respective rights were granted.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a straight-line
basis over the period of leases.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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31 March 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation of leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation of buildings are
calculated using the straight-line methods to allocate their cost
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land classified as finance Over the lease terms

lease
Buildings 50 years
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group reassessed the
utilisation pattern of its other assets whose costs were previously
allocated to their residual values (if any) over their estimated
useful lives using the reducing balance method, and considered
that the use of the straight line method could better reflect the

actual usage of these assets. The below set out the details of
depreciation method adopted by the Group:

Periods from 1 October
Periods prior to 1 October 2012 2012 onwards

Plant and machinery Reducing balance 15% Straight line 6 to 7 years
Leasehold improvements,

furniture, fixtures and

Reducing balance 10% to 33%  Straight line 5 to 10 years
equipment

Motor vehicles Reducing balance 15% to 33% Straight line 5 years

Moulds and tooling Reducing balance 15% to 50% Straight line 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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31 March 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings, the
costs of plant and machinery, installation, testing and other direct
costs. No depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into use,
the costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
‘other gains, net’ in the income statement.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Company’s interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Club debenture

Club debenture represents golf club membership and is
stated at cost less impairment, if any.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example, goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at each reporting date.

59 AN EERER A A

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



Bt 7% iR R M 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

—EF-mFE=H=+—H 31 March 2014
2. EEESTBEHEw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
210 E2RMEE 2.10 Financial assets
(a) 7HE (a) Classification

AEERESREEDEHN
TR ERREER . AR
AHEEE - 2BERFRES R
BEZEMME - BEEENRY
FERCHMEERSGENE -

(i BRI

BR Rk EWRIE LB E
EXAEEMKAELE
EERMS ERE - B
SO B KTEH R
HHREFHBA12(E
R EREERBEE
A BRIDEAIER
EE -SEZERKE
WHERIEEHEESR
BERAZERE SRR
MEWZE  ZeRkHE
fth FE R IE 3R & R IR
eEFEMMF214 %
2.15) o

(i) RN EHEE

At ESREETE
FERIRRRI BN E
e ERARR 2 T ES
BMTA -BRIEEEER
BERSHRER T @
ARBEERE - &Rl
BERIRIERDE
= o

aENEEERAR
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

Al 60

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following
categories: loans and receivables and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

() Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and notes receivables”, “deposits and other
receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in
the consolidated balance sheet (Notes 2.14 and
2.15).

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months at the end of the reporting period.
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31 March 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘other gains, net’ in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as
part of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustment
recognised in equity is included in the income statement

s “other gains, net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the
income statement as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
the income statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11

2.12

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using an observable market price.
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31 March 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria referred to in (a)
above.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through the income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined by using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables, other payables and accruals are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables, other payables and accruals are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except for deferred tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and an associate only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in
the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is legally enforceable rights to offset current income
tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when
the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balance on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans which are available to all relevant
employees. These plans are generally funded through
payments to schemes established by government or
trustee-administered funds. A defined contribution plan is
a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefit
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

All contributions to pension plans are fully and
immediately vested and the Group had no unvested
benefits available to reduce its future contributions.
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31 March 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Bonus plan

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense within “finance costs” in the income statement.
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31 March 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24

Leases (as the lessee)

(a)

(b)

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that substantially
transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the
lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in current and non-current liabilities, where appropriate.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
income statement over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease periods.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for

goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value

added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount

of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that

future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific

criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as

described below. The Group bases its estimates of return on

historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer,

the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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31 March 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

2.26

Revenue recognition (continued)

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the customer, the customer
has accepted the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products and collectivity of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

(c) Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents a
separate major line of business or geographic area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented in the income statement, which comprises the post-
tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the post-tax
gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.
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3.

31 March 2014

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, and cash
flow and fair value interest-rate risks), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of derivative financial instruments to hedge certain
risk exposures is governed by the Group’s policies approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Group would
occasionally enter into certain forward foreign exchange contracts
to manage its exchange risks. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Canada with most of the
transactions settled in United States dollar
(“US$”), HK$, Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) and
Canadian dollar (“CAD”). Foreign exchange risk
arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk from various currencies, primarily
with respect to US$, CAD and RMB. Since
the HK$ is pegged to the US$, management
are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk
exposure arising from US$ with respect to HK$ is
insignificant.

Management has a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange
risk against their functional currencies. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arising from
sales and purchases made by the relevant
group companies in currencies other than their
own functional currencies. The Group also
manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and would consider the
use of foreign exchange contracts to manage its
foreign exchange risks, where appropriate. As
at 31 March 2014, the Group did not have any
outstanding foreign exchange contracts.
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31 March 2014

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(i

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2014, certain of the Group’s
receivables, cash and bank balances and trade
payables were denominated in foreign currencies,
details of which have been disclosed in the
respective notes to these financial statements.

At 31 March 2014, if the HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB, with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
(2013: post-tax loss) for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,012,000 higher/lower (2013:
HK$139,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
RMB-denominated financial assets and liabilities.

At 31 March 2014, if the CAD had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$, with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
(2013: post-tax loss) for the year would have been
approximately HK$898,000 lower/higher (2013:
HK$797,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
CAD-denominated financial assets and liabilities.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk as
investments held by the Group are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets in the balance
sheet as at 31 March 2014. The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk.
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31 March 2014

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets except for the cash at
banks, details of which are disclosed in Note
26. The Group’s exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings,
details of which are disclosed in Note 27.
Borrowings carried at floating rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group
has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2014, if the interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower, with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit (2013: post-tax loss) for the year would
have been HK$162,000 lower/higher (2013:
HK$252,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
The carrying amounts of cash at banks, trade and notes
receivables, deposits and other receivables included in
the consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

The majority of the Group’s cash at banks are deposited
in major financial institutions located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Canada, which management believes
are of high credit quality. Management does not expect
any losses arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.
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31 March 2014

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale
of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. Normally the Group does
not require collaterals from trade debtors.

Management makes periodic collective assessment as
well as individual assessment on the recoverability of
trade and other receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial
strength of the trade and other debtors, the relevant
credit insurance coverage and whether there are any
disputes with the relevant debtors. The Group’s historical
experience in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and directors are
of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables has been made in these financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for additions of and upgrades on property, plant and
equipment, settlement of borrowings, payment for
trade and other payables and payment for operating
expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources
and bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

Taking into account the repayment on demand clauses on
bank borrowings, all of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at 31 March 2014 were due for settlement contractually
within 12 months, with their contractual undiscounted
cash flows approximate their respective carrying amounts.
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31 March 2014

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the maturity
date of term loans with a repayment on demand clause
is based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
loan agreements, disregarding the repayment on demand
clauses. In addition, certain covenant requirements for
certain borrowings as at 31 March 2013 were breached
(Note 27),

applicable for these borrowings in the below analysis.

repayment on demand clauses remained

-FEME “EERE

—ER Between Between TENE
Within 1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years Over 5 years
FET TE FAT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
89,381 6,064 9,816 1,695
84,436 - - -
15,688 - - -
101,033 1,436 2,677 10,074
65,425 - - -
41,566 = = =

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, all of the Company’s
financial liabilities are due for settlement contractually
within 12 months.
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3. MEBEREREEx= 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 AFEET 3.2 Fair value estimation

N-ZE—NER T =F=F=+— As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, all the resulting fair value

H SEZAHEESREERERES estimates on the available-for-sale financial assets are made

R EERE T RAEEZ A ETESE according to the fair value measurement hierarchy under HKFRS

ATEEERAT : 7.

ATFESEFHERAT : The different levels of fair value measurements are defined as

follows:

. REEESBERERTS L . Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
ZmEBOREHAR) (BR—) - assets or liabilities (level 1).

o FAE—BRAZREUINZE 0 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
EXBEBEZUERZ2E - T that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
BEGMER) S HEZEBIITAER (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
EBR)(BR=) - prices) (level 2).

. EERAEBERMIGHIE 2 EE o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
FEELE(TABR28) (B observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
H=) (level 3).

TRERASEAHEECREER " The following table shows fair value measurement hierarchy

T-NEER—FT—=F=ZA=+—HHK to which the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets are

AFEZFTERER : measured at fair value belong as at 31 March 2014 and 2013:

—E2—N0 —E—=
2014 2013
FET FEITL
HK$’000 HK$’000
B&R— Level 1
RS DA REE S Equity listed securities classified as available-
BE for-sale financial assets 308 328
BH= Level 3
BEEERERRALODEANHE  Key management insurance classified as
HESHEE available-for-sale financial assets 15,159 14,808
15,467 15,136
R WEEHR— —R=22HENE There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
%o
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BEERERE 2

3.2

DNPEMGEE)

FEIEREMSEENHNHE TANRQFER
BREERNTSRESRK - EHREA A
RMERAREFRZA X508 &
L ERAL  EERBEXREERE
S MEFREARRATFRHEE
ETNERNERTERZE &M
WRRIERE - AEERHANMIEEEN
MERERERERE HETABR
RER— -

REBEEERTSE &/ T A0
BINMTETR)ORAFER B G E R
EBE o MERMNREFNATBRMSEE
% &2 KRB ERAEEME o fh
AR —UBETANATEMTNAEE
RNE AR A EREIE - BIZMET AT
ABR= -

K-F-ME=A=1—8 REL=
ETHHESBAENATEELER
TERBEE B -

I—IARZIRE R AL FFRIE A B
minEE - ARMBTANARR= -

3.

31 March 2014

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq)

3.2

Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to estimate the fair
value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

The fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets
classified within level 3 of fair value hierarchy approximates its
account value as at 31 March 2014.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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31 March 2014

3. MEBEREREEx= 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 AFEMEE) 3.2  Fair value estimation (continued)
TRETAEEEF="N=2Z—NF R The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments
T =Ff=A=1+—HILEFETIA: for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013:
£E
Group
—_E- —T—=
2014 2013
FET FEIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HA 9] Beginning of the year 14,808 14 457
AT ERE Fair value gains 351 351
HAR End of the year 15,159 14,808
BARBERREHEEZ Changes in unrealised gains or losses for the year
EE R IR R E MR AW2RE  included in other comprehensive income or loss
B e+ at the end of the year 351 351

HREPARENRE  SEZRSE
REEZEHE UWERREKRSEE
Y BMEXRBEREBRER Zek
Hip e ss - AR ERBeMAaE s
HE G EEREEMNERIKRIE  BNE
A EENFRRER - HEAQF
EEEAER -

3.3 EFXmEkEE

FEBNESEEIE  —RESHE
BEEE  ARBRRIRH R R A
R A AR - AR ERREN
BAREBARIEE SRR o

AEBEETRENER  WRBLBERER
g RSB RS HB TRERN
RESHE MRRREER  HITHKR
HEBGRERITER °

AEENRERNBELREREEAR -
b EE IR IR B TS 3 B ER AR B AFTHE -
BERFEARER(BEEaHEERR
RPN RN E SO R ER &
ERSEEY - BERRIEE (&
HEEBBERMAI) REBFE -
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables,
deposits and other receivables, and the Group’s current financial
liabilities including trade payables, accruals and other payables,
and borrowings, approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

3.3 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
“equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
debt.
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31 March 2014

HHEREE 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 EXREMERE(EZ) 3.3  Capital risk management (continued)
TERETR-ZE—NFR-_T—=F= The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
B=4+—8 £B8ZEAALBIOT : March 2014 and 2018:

=F—@O ==

2014 2013

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

RIEE(K727) Total borrowings (Note 27) 105,528 114,268

B Be kB EEBWM (N 726) Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) (55,533) (60,160)

ERSHE Net debt 49,995 54,108

B Total equity 228,183 212,906

RS- N Total capital 278,178 267,014

BEARBEKRE Gearing ratio 18% 20%

RZZE—WE=A=+—H &£ET As at 31 March 2014, the total banking facilities made available

FREEZ% 4 5155708000 T to the Group amounted to approximately HK$155,708,000 (2013:

(ZZ=—=% :190,092,000/& 7T ) * M HK$190,092,000), of which approximately HK$105,528,000
H $1105,528,000 8 L (ZF —=F : (2013: HK$115,032,000) was utilised by the Group.

115,032,000 8 7T) E B °
EESTEFRER 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

At SER ARG LABERLBRMEMEE
ERER  BREFRBEATHEERAEZR
REMIER -

REBER AR A ET RIRER - AEBE KRR
EH RS 2 @5t T —EREENEHE
RAER o AT AT & 8 E B B8l 5t R R
R AEHARTEMBFEELEELEAEF L
FREEEERBE

(a) BmERE

AEBERBEGABRIINME2.8
FUHHBETAARTS B EMRES
2 REEHETZARESRTIZE
EREEMRER - WEFEREERMG
it FEESIRHIEE 16 o

ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations required the use of estimates (Note 16).
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4, EBEESHEFTREBR®

(b)

(c)

(d)

Hith3F & @& EREN G

BEEFRERBENEDESHEBEREE
FA BRI B - ARERMEMIES
MEEBREYE  HEESRRBEARLH
ERERRIE - EEEEARE—RA
EH B RRR  efETERE
BEREEEGHNRASRE  BEL
MEBESRENA RS  BRSER
ZEBEEMNFSREE@E) - At - 58
BEEBEAEEIREESER  GRSH
DIRBR B HEENEE - AEERE
BEKRMABEBFIASLABRS
mBhE - REEAKESE  AKE
ERREZEFREFENRSRE 7
SIS REMBLAEER)

FERSRFE

FREAZHFEEREXRGHHEEN
Bribat SR> - RGBT RERTH
SURBE H SR OE M2 R AE ©
HEGATEERR AR MRS FE
TEBRGHFH ARG HREX
Y  EHEENSHEEASMIELSE
R

FRE®H

REBEBNZ ERDEE R ZFISH °
EREERRAER < BER - AEEA
EHERHE - ZIAR P Rt E RS
REBIAEHRREERE o ARE A
ARREEHEZHRBINIA R FER A
BEEFEECBE HRFEFEZR
REBERBBINAR 2 EBTR - B
ZESHENEE R 228 RREMR
BHEERBBELZE

EMEEERER QA 80

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

31 March 2014

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of other non-financial assets

Other non-financial assets including property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and land use rights are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the related carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Determining whether impairment has occurred
typically requires various estimates and assumptions, including
determining which cash flows are directly related to the
potentially impaired asset, the useful life over which cash
flows will occur, their amount, and the asset’s residual value,
if any. In turn, measurement of an impairment loss requires a
determination of recoverable amount, which is based on the best
information available. The Group derives the required cash flow
estimates from historical experience and internal business plans.
To determine recoverable amount, the Group uses cash flow
estimates discounted at an appropriate discount rate, quoted
market prices when available and independent appraisals, as
appropriate.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences would
impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.
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31 March 2014

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

£5
Group
-2 —T—=F
2014 2013
FET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEREER Continuing operations
S Turnover
HEEm Sales of goods 618,300 547,916
EBER Segment information
AEEFERELHEET LM EEETE The Group is principally engaged in the electronic components

an 7% M B A B RS E m AR RS o

BERRARHTEE(RBEAIERE
B&%/\J) * JRYEH SRBE R E o E%ELJ&%
NEBBERANRF R EMER R A RS A
AERERRLBUDEEERNER - EHEE
IMRIBZ E M LR E D BIELHE -

REERRAUEELEARERAEERE
i‘%ﬂﬁ%ii%éfﬁ B EFmaafbRiE] [E1E
mBUE | AN EREE m&H ] -

R-F——F+—A=-+=0 £EHET=
E&%%«iﬁ%%*”“ﬂ#%ﬁ‘%ﬁﬁy%%ﬁ%*ﬁw
RElzEm(FBAILESRH])  BRER
ﬁ%%zmn?ﬂi%%168000/9&7z&39,5o1,000
BIT(KizE34) © ﬁﬁtm SEAE T LR

Y F 2 HREEIBH

HE-FT-—=F=A=+—AILFE 8
HETBTHBEQRETFLBMERBHLE
DEZEH -

BE_ZT—="F=-"A=1+—HIFE HEE
B R ESDARREERS - EMEEENE 08
RERIEREXER(EES4) -

m

distribution, electronic products manufacturing, and personal computer
products distribution.

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the executive
directors (collectively referred to as the “CODM”) that make strategic
decisions. The CODM reviews the internal reporting of the Company and
its subsidiaries in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The CODM considers the business from the perspective of the nature
of operations and the type of products, including the “Electronic
Components Distribution”, “Electronic Products Manufacturing” and
“Personal Computer Products Distribution”.

On 23 November 2012, the Group disposed of the equity interests
in several wholly-owned subsidiaries which were principally involved
in the distribution of electronic components (the “disposal group”)
at a consideration and gain on disposal of HK$63,168,000 and
HK$39,501,000 respectively (Note 34). The disposal group represented a
major portion of the Electronic Components Distribution segment.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group also abandoned the
operations of the Consumer Electronics and Electronics Components
and Parts Manufacturing segment.

The disposal group together with certain related operations, and the
abandoned manufacturing segment were classified as discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 March 2013 (Note 34).
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FENEERB INERIBETFERSEE] LA@E
SRS ELEE BT R B8R 2 RIRER
Ij]ﬁb °

BRIERTSENA - Bl
HEMNEEAERTE DB ZRANABRS
i’ﬂ?‘%fb%‘?ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%?ﬂ BEVE= T &
BERRARE 2 WD #0.2 FRTEAE N KA
HEEDMORIR - B TFTETELERRAN
Hib BRI ABRE FI B HRER B A E -
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BHEE  AIHBESREEMETNEE(E
%ﬁ%*w‘ﬁ@*ﬁﬁ’]%%& RN AR R

RITAERR) - 2RV ENEBELETNEEANHR
BIEFFSREE  AFNEERERNARE -
ZEEEMNABREERBERA LKL -

BE-F-=F=A=1+-R%5E HERK
F 2 EHREL T DA T A AR -
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment information (continued)

During the year, the Directors resolved to re-term the remaining
manufacturing segment of “Contract Electronic Manufacturing Services”
as “Electronic Products Manufacturing” to align with the current and
planned future operating functions of the existing manufacturing

operations.

Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by the respective business unit leaders. Inter-
segment transactions are entered into under the normal commercial
terms and conditions that would normally be available to unrelated third
parties. CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of profit before income tax. Other information
provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in
the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred income tax assets,
available-for-sale financial assets and corporate assets (mainly including
certain corporate properties and equipment and corporate cash and
bank balances), all of which are managed on a central basis. Liabilities of
reportable segments exclude current and deferred income tax liabilities,
corporate borrowings and other corporate liabilities. These are part of the
reconciliation to total balance sheet assets and liabilities.

The results of the disposals and abandonment for the year ended 31
March 2013 had been excluded from the segment information.
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PEER(E)
é%%ﬁ Turnover
HEHD Sales of goods

2RI B RE

% bR BRARERERE
HEHERMT -

2RI M RA
ADRBA
ADERX (W (8)

FeaR
HENA - #8

BBATRIE
MEBRX

REERH

Rt aas :
BAMX I
%%ﬁ‘ %%%&E&f%&&é%%

RELWERERNE
RREES
iR
X REAERRE
FERERRE

Hiit(a)

Results of reportable segments

A reconciliation of results of reportable
segments to profit for the year is as
follows:

Results of reportable segments
Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses (Note (a))

Operating profit
Finance costs — net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment information:

Capital expenditure

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment and investment properties

Loss on disposal of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of land use rights

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Provision for impairment of inventories

AOERXEIZERREEXEEREENTE  HER

Hih =@

31 March 2014

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

BE-Z-MEZA=+-HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2014

BABMK

EmiSs#

ETnEHLH ETERBE Personal

Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Products Products KB faEg
Distribution Manufacturing Distribution Unallocated Total
TEx TEx TE7 TE7 FE7
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
176,993 159,062 282,245 - 618,300
2,406 7,308 6,909 - 16,623
16,623
1,855
(9,430)
9,048
(1,407)
7,641
(2,480)
5,161
317 1,811 267 1,769 4,224
99 4,289 17 3,781 8,340
24 - - 17 4
- - - 238 238
259 - 68 - 327
- - 1,392 - 1,392

Note (a):

Unallocated expenses mainly include salaries, depreciation, and other operating
expenses incurred at corporate level.
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5. WARDEHEE = 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
AEER(E Segment information (continued)
“E-ME=A=1-H
As at 31 March 2014
BAEHK
EmSH
BT nEHLH ETERBE Personal
Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Products Products ag
Distribution Manufacturing Distribution Total
FE7 FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
PHEE Segment assets
HE Goodwill - - 25,901 25,901
HihnHEE Other segment assets 104,327 102,723 74,139 281,189
104,327 102,723 100,040 307,090
BEMEHAE Deferred income tax assets 21
THENESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 15,467
HERPREEM () Other unallocated assets (Note (a)) 116,096
AMEEEBRRNWEELE  Total assets per consolidated balance
sheet 438,894
AHEE Segment liabilities
PHEE Segment liabilities 73,078 64,959 39,108 177,145
JEf i3 Tax payable 2,431
ERFEHERE Deferred income tax liabilities 273
R RBEHZ D) Other unallocated liabilities (Note (b)) 30,862
AHEEEERNEEEE  Total liabilities per consolidated
balance sheet 210,711
HieE - Note:
(a) RZE—NF=A=+—H HihRkHEE (@) As at 31 March 2014, other unallocated assets mainly included land and

EXIZCEEABERBAZHBN LB RE
FESERZReRACEEY - HEZ
BEFECBEEDAEENA -

buildings in respect of all factory and office premises, and cash and cash
equivalents for corporate usage. Depreciation charge in respect of factory
premises utilised is included in the related segment results.

(o) RIE-—WF=A=+—H " ERHEE (o)
BEXERRENNEER -

As at 31 March 2014, other unallocated liabilities mainly included corporate
borrowings.
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DEWER(E)

LES
HEER

2RI BZRA

2D B FEAAEERE

HEHENT

ERP M RE

ADERBA — BEYX
B

e kBl
AOERX (M ()

2842
BANE - 98

BBATRE
MERR X

REERE
EfpAsEs
BRI

% BERRENE

TR ER
el X REAER R

% BERREAERE

FERERE

HKiat(a) -

Turnover
Sales of goods

Results of reportable segments

A reconciliation of results of reportable
segments to profit for the year is as
follows:

Results of reportable segments

Unallocated income - net gains on disposal
of property, plant and equipment

Unallocated expenses (Note (a))

Operating profit
Finance costs — net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other segment information:
Capital expenditure
Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of land use rights
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Provision for impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for impairment of inventories

ANERXEIZERREEXEIEENTE HER

Hi @R

31 March 2014

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment information (continued)

BE-Z-ZHZ-A=T-HIFE

Year ended 31 March 2013

EAEH
\ EREH
ST aHEH ETERYE Personal
Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Products Products RAR ek
Distribution Manufacturing Distribution Unallocated Total
AT AT TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201,014 78,280 268,622 — 547,916
3,543 (233) 5,838 - 9,148
9,148
17,529
(9,967)
16,710
(878)
15,832
(1,928)
13,904
25 1,238 92 1,901 3,256
89 2,994 383 2,505 5,971
= = = 360 360
95 - 179 - 274
118 5,602 - 1,036 6,756
= = 903 = 903
Note (a):

Unallocated expenses mainly include salaries, depreciation, and other operating

expenses incurred at corporate level.
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AR e
5. WARZHER 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
DEER(E) Segment information (continued)
“E-=%=-A=t+-H
As at 31 March 2013
EAER
EmEH
B RIS BfEMEE Personal
Electronic Electronic Computer
Components Products Products k]
Distribution Manufacturing Distribution Total
FET FET FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PBEE Segment assets

5 Goodwill - - 28,201 28,201

HtpHEE Other segment assets 90,024 79,547 63,577 233,148

90,024 79,547 91,778 261,349

AEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 15,136

BRIFEAERAEEERE  Assets related to discontinued

AR EEE operations and other unallocated
(Hit() assets (Note (a)) 162,113
AHEESERNEESSE  Total assets per consolidated balance
sheet 438,598

AHEE Segment liabilities

AHEE Segment liabilities 73,666 38,166 32,634 144,466

e Tax payable 1,490

BREFEHAR Deferred income tax liabilities 253

BRIEEEERIEMARE  Liabilities related to discontinued

ERDAREE operations and other unallocated
(Hrit () liabilities (Note (b)) 79,483

AHEEEERNEEEE  Total liabilities per consolidated
balance sheet 225,692

HieE - Note:

(a) MNZE—=F=A=+—H HihknEE (a) As at 31 March 2013, other unallocated assets mainly included land
EXrEaEEEREEENERERBAE and buildings in respect of all factory and office premises, and cash and
HEN T REF BAXERAESNES cash equivalents for corporate usage related to continuing operations.
EBY - BEEBRLEKHEBCBEITED Depreciation charge in respect of factory premises utilised by the
BREEBBSMBERNRN - BRIEKCEELHE continuing operations is included in the related segment results. Assets
B EEITZERNZ 2 EWEBERTEFS - related to discontinued operation mainly included outstanding receivables

and inventories.

(b) R-_E—=%F=F=+—H0' ' EWEXoica (b) As at 31 March 2013, other unallocated liabilities mainly included corporate
EIXIERFEEanEs - E,@@ﬁ%«ﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁ borrowings. Liabilities related to discontinued operations mainly included
MZBETBERRAMBZEERERE outstanding borrowings and trade payables.
8RIE °
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31 March 2014

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment information (continued)
The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external

customers attributable to Hong Kong and other locations (on the basis of
customers’ locations) is analysed as follows:

SAERE F U 2
Revenue from external customers
=% —F—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BB Hong Kong 87,970 130,003
elleiy N 173 Mainland China 131,472 73,411
1E3=M North America 285,554 268,622
BOM Europe 101,701 75,880
BN IR Other Asian countries 11,603 —
618,300 547,916

RZZ—MFE=A=+—8 R EBZIER
HEELTE KEaE AfHLEemEE -
BAFEEESHESRECHBEREEGRE
REBEH TEEIRMNEEREN)ING
8,079,000/ jt(= T — = 4 : 9,433,000/8
gL)  mEMtE(EELFEEMNEKR)AIIE
MENVE EH A 109,548,000 8 L (ZF— =4 :
112,789,000/ 7T ) °

Hau A 6.
e A Rental income
Efh Others

At 31 March 2014, the total non-current assets other than goodwill,
available-for-sale financial assets, prepayments and rental deposits and
deferred income tax assets (there are no employment benefit assets
and rights arising under insurance contracts) located in Hong Kong
are approximately HK$8,079,000 (2013: HK$9,433,000), and the total
non-current assets located in other locations (mainly in Mainland China
and Canada) amounted to approximately HK$109,548,000 (2013:
HK$112,789,000).

OTHER INCOME

—E— —F—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
2,005 774
1,037 101
3,042 875
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7. OTHER GAINS, NET

Net exchange gains
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

8. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-
in-progress

Trading merchandise sold, and raw materials and
consumables used

Provision for impairment of inventories

Auditor’s remuneration

Amortisation of land use rights

Depreciation
— owned property, plant and equipment
— investment properties
— property, plant and equipment held under

finance leases

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(included in general and administrative expenses)

Employment benefit expenses (including directors’
emoluments) (Note 9)

Operating lease rental in respect of land and
buildings

Travelling and office expenses

Transportation expenses

Advertising expenses

Repairs and maintenance expenses

Other expenses

Representing:
Cost of sales
Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses

31 March 2014

—E— —_E—=
2014 2013
FET FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
71 866

(41) —

30 866
=F—-O ==
2014 2013
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(9,676) (28,187)
514,994 484,731
1,392 903
1,840 2,242
238 360
7,567 5,290
773 —

— 681

327 274
61,900 49,611
7,280 7,106
12,718 9,325
5,641 4,404
214 261
1,211 807
5,905 5,912
612,324 543,720
530,537 479,197
12,901 10,224
68,886 54,299
612,324 543,720
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10.

ETEANEX

BREFME 2 ETRAMMAMT

W - TE KRR

TEAL

BASKRA — EBtHRE
B

BEKE — FHE

RITERMBHA

R A BN E SR IRRARITE R Z
B

H &5z F S5

MEMREZH S &0

BMEKA — FE

31 March 2014

9. EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT EXPENSES

Employment benefit expenses, including directors’ emoluments, consist

of:
=70 =z—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Wages, salaries and allowances 54,306 43,903
Bonuses 2,317 2,988
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 2,968 1,991
Welfare, benefits and others 2,309 729
61,900 49,611
10. FINANCE COSTS — NET

=20 ==
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Interest income from bank deposits 942 854

Interest expense on bank loans which contains a
repayment on demand clause (2,306) (1,396)
Interest expense on other borrowings (37) (302)
Interest element of finance leases (6) (34)
(2,349) (1,732)
Finance costs — net (1,407) (878)
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—E-mE=FA=1+—H 31 March 2014

11. FEHRMAX 11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
RARIEEREARENIE - EEFEH LR The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda. Hong Kong profits
BEBBEMKZAMEBRRERBELEIR tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the
BEBZMEFTERTEMNIZ165% (ZT—= estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong.
F :16.5%) 2 TR B AR - BRI REE Companies established and operating in Mainland China are subject to
ZRAFIRBHRBCEMGER  BHER25% (= PRC corporate income tax at the rate of 25% (2013: 25%). Companies
T—=F:25%) c MRMERNKILIREEZ established and operating in Canada are subject to Canadian income tax
RNAEIRBMERFAER - HENF26.0%ZE at rates ranging from 26.0% to 26.5% (2013: 25.0% to 26.5%).

26.5% (ZZ—=%F : 25.0% £26.5%) °

=ZF—MN =F/==
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B TR Current taxation
— BAENEB — Hong Kong profits tax 658 521
— PEREMSH — PRC corporate income tax 170 121
— MEXFEH — Canadian income tax 1,873 1,173
BETIRE R =R E A RED Deferred taxation relating to the origination and
(H1:# 30) reversal of temporary differences (Note 30) (221) 113
2,480 1,928
NEB MG BANGENZMER - BEAEEZ The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
MEMAE 2Bz =XENT theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate
as follows:
—E-m —T—=
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R %5 A1 g ) Profit before income tax 7,641 15,832
BiIRIE 16.5% T RETH Calculated at taxation rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%)

—T =% :16.5%) 1,261 2,612
TRREZZE Effect of different tax rate 190 473
BARDZ A Income not subject to tax (153) (3,064)
TR 2 2 Expenses not deductible 128 398
REER 2 HIEE KR Tax losses not recognised 1,659 1,286
ATEAR e TR T IS B 1B 2 FE AR Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (711) —
H Others 106 223
I Taxation charge 2,480 1,928
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E=
S

(a)

C THRAZRERITHA

&

12.

EERTHRARME

RZBE-—NFE=A=+—HFALRQHA
BBEEZMENT :

Esng

YTES
NEREL(FTHEH)
Ripsa L
FREREWH 1)
RERTE
HRBEEWH2)
BEEREEWZ2)

BIFHTES
2HA

Bt
BRREL
2HELE

Hiat1 -

Hrat2 -

Name of Director

Executive directors

Mr LAU Tak Wan (chief executive)

Ms CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky

Mr WAN Chor Fai (Note 1)

Mr CHEUNG Wai Ho

Mr CHONG Wing Kim, James (Note 2)
Mr FUNG Wai Ching (Note 2)

Independent non-executive
directors

Dr Barry John BUTTIFANT

Dr LIU Ngai Wing

Mr CHOI Yuk Fan

TE-=ZFNA-BRERTE

=+ A-+t=AEEF

RYWTES -

31 March 2014

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for the

year ended 31 March 2014 is set out below:

RINE M

HeREH Mis A Contribution
e Salaries and Discretionary to retirement fE
Fees allowances bonuses  benefit scheme Total
TEr FEx FET FAT -
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$7000
- 3,156 - 145 3,301
- 1,078 - 49 1,127
- 525 - 12 537
- 754 50 35 839
- 618 - 10 628
- 429 - 19 448
100 - - - 100
75 - - - 75
50 - - - 50
225 6,560 50 270 7,105

Note 1: Resigned as an executive director on 1 September 2013.

Note 2: Appointed as an executive director on 23 July 2013.
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E=
S

éﬁﬁ%ﬁ&m&ﬁﬁk

(a) BEERTHRARME (&)
R-E—=%F=A=+—HBEREAQT
BEEZMESWT -

ESHA Name of Director

HTES Executive directors

BISBEL (77H##) Mr LAU Tak Wan (chief executive)

‘AT Ms CHAN Yuen Mei, Pinky

FRELE Mr WAN Chor Fai

BEEEE(HFT)  MrMAK Hon Kai, Stanly (Note 1)

REFEL(MZ2)  Mr CHEUNG Wai Ho (Note 2)

BUFHTES Independent non-executive

directors

ZRAEL Dr Barry John BUTTIFANT

BHEREL Dr LIU Ngai Wing

BRELE Mr CHOI Yuk Fan

Big1: R—E—=F=A -+ tHEEH

TEE o
Bz R—E—=F=A-+tHEZHE
RMTES -

R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—HER " A

BE  TREHESATERAEZHE

HEEREENFELEEBNA -

BEERAFERERZLTMAM S
TE—=F &)  RAFEHREIMS

FEEETMMBHE R EEERN

ZHECE—=ZF:E) EEHE

BYSTEEMNERECCSE—=F:

=) o
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31 March 2014

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2013 is set out below:

BIRSER

e RzE MiBTEa Contribution
g Salaries and Discretionary to retirement ag
Fees allowances bonuses benefit scheme Total
FET FET FET FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 2,502 - 118 2,620
- 853 - 41 894
- 932 - 35 967
- 968 1,812 38 2,818
100 - - - 100
75 - - - 75
50 - - - 50
225 5,255 1,812 232 7,524

Note 1: Resigned as an executive director on 27 March 2013.

Note 2: Appointed as an executive director on 27 March 2013.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, directors’, chief
executive’s and senior management’s emoluments were all
included in the Group’s continuing operations.

No director waived any emoluments during the year (2013: Nil).
No emolument was paid to any directors as inducement to join
or as compensation for loss of office during the year (2013: Nil).
No director has been granted or has exercised any share option
during the year (2013: Nil).
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31 March 2014

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include five (2013: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the emoluments paid and
payable to the remaining individual is as follows:

—F-=
2013
FET
HK$’000

Basic salaries and allowances 682
Discretionary bonus 384
Pension scheme contribution 28

1,094

The emoluments fell within the following band:

AEL
Number of
individual
—ZE—=

2013

HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1

During the year, no emolument was paid to the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and other employees) as
inducement to join or as compensation for loss of office (2013:
Nil).
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13.

31 March 2014

PENSION SCHEMES

Hong Kong

The Group has two defined contribution pension schemes, the retirement
scheme organised under the Hong Kong Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO Scheme”) and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”), for its employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group under independently administered funds.

Under the ORSO Scheme, the Group and each of its employees make
monthly contribution to the scheme of approximately 5% respectively,
of the employees’ salary. The unvested benefits of employees who have
terminated employment are utilised by the Group to reduce its future
contributions. As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group did not have
significant unvested benefits.

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its employees makes
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance.
Both the Group’s and the employee’s contributions are subjected to
a cap of HK$1,250 per month (prior to 1 June 2012: HK$1,000) and
contributions thereafter are voluntary. The contributions are fully and
immediately vested in the employees.

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its relevant
employees in Mainland China. The Group and its relevant employees
make monthly contributions to the plans at the respective statutory rates
on the relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances and bonus).
The Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of post-
retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire post-retirement benefits
payable to retired employees.
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14.

15.

NEEFE®
mEx

AEEFZEAMENEEREMZEZH ' K
TETERENEBREFSIN - ANERENR
S EI(CPP) & AH R - HEIZES A%
BREKRRDE Z24.95% (Z T —=4F :4.95%)
R BFEEESEMAERRKSBWABTZR
387,000 JL(#HE 1 52,500 1 7C ) (=T — =

13.

£ : 390,000 7T (A8 51,100 007T) ) ©

NAEBEREARGLER

14.

RARESFEA AEMGEEBEARD RS ®R
RAKREEY 53320008 Tt( T —=4F:
199,523,000 7T ) °

B Rm R

(a)

15.
%N
BREARZNERBFEARAERR

BARERT](EE)BRIAR R B #1T
TEBIEFIOBHE -

31 March 2014

PENSION SCHEMES (continued)

Canada

The Group is required to make monthly contribution to the National
Canada Pension Plan (“CPP”) in respect of its employees in Canada
based on the relevant employees’ salaries, with the exceptions of certain
excluded employment and benefits, at a rate of 4.95% (2013: 4.95%)
of the employees’ salaries subject to a maximum annual pensionable
earnings of HK$387,000 (equivalent to CAD52,500) (2013: HK$390,000
(equivalent to CAD51,100)).

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately
HK$332,000 (2013: HK$199,523,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss)
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

—ZE—MN —_E—=

2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RATRERR A AT (E18) Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders
of the Company 8,342 (171,008)
IR - Excluding:
ARAERFEARMGDERIEL (Profit)/loss from discontinued operations
EEBCRH) EiE attributable to equity holders of the
Company (3,181) 184,912
RNABIRERTB AEIHEERKLER  Profit from continuing operations attributable
il to equity holders of the Company 5,161 13,904
—Z—q —F—=
2014 2013
TR MNETERTHE(T) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue ("000) 416,152 365,123
SIREARF (EE) CF#42)  Basic earnings/(loss) per share
(rounded to HK cents per share)
— FHRKEEE — Continuing operations 1.24 3.81
— BRIEEEET — Discontinued operations 0.76 (50.64)
2.00 (46.83)
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31 March 2014

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted

Dilutive earnings per share is of the same amount as the basic
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary

o shares outstanding during the year.
16. BB 16. GOODWILL
= —E—=
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B AR Cost

A7) Beginning of the year 28,201 28,625
JE R AR Exchange differences (2,300) (424)
AR End of the year 25,901 28,201

BEZRERR Impairment tests for goodwill

HEBDREBESESHEAZCAEBRCELSE
NplE R-ZFE-—=FRR_ZF-—MNF=A
=t—H BAEREFLIERMEREEZHEA

BUEREHAHH -

SORERN TS BENAIKRESEREER
BEFE - EREESENEREEERRE
A mit/ENRERFHEMBEENRS R
BRH - EAFUARZRSREHRIEE K
(SR

aANEEERAERAA 96
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Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified
according to operating segment. As at 31 March 2013 and 2014, all the
goodwill is allocated to the “Personal computers products distribution”
segment in Canada.

For the purposes of impairment reviews, the recoverable amount of
goodwill is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on the annual financial
budgets approved by management for the purposes of impairment
reviews covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated according to a constant-growth assumption.
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31 March 2014

16. BE») 16. GOODWILL (continuea)

B ZBERNR(F

ERBEFETEZEERRMT

Impairment tests for goodwill (continued)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

mEXEE

Canada

operations

—2-m

2014

EIES Gross margin 9.53%
HRx Growth rate 1.73% to 2.73%
PR == (FLAT) Discount rate (pre-tax) 16.67%

BEMEMNEDEEERBEATRRAREHM
BHERNIEMET - fIEANGRERNR L
HERTBBITEEINERE - FIEANEF
IR K BBRBIAT - R EERENT ST
HREBITENEIRR BEEEESE il
BEREE TEZETHREBREEE -
WEF KD ZRE02 T RREHDZ RN
0.8% ' HTIME (AT IBINZR2.7% @ &8
REAFEHAEELRGS LR EMR RETHR
& it = TR FTE A /O = B R R A 1R i B
MEZSBREMNEMESTHZSHESRER
AEREATE -

The budgeted gross margin was determined by management based
on past performance and its expectation for market development. The
growth rates used are largely consistent and do not exceed the industry
growth forecast. The annual discount rates are before tax and reflect
market assessments of the time value and the specific risks relating
to the relevant segment. Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and has also taken into account the business
plan going forward. If there is a decrease in gross margin or growth rate
by more than 50 basis points and 0.8% respectively, or an increase in
discount rate (pre-tax) by more than 2.7%, there would be a shortfall
of value-in-use against the carrying amount of goodwill. Judgment
is required to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
projections and the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect
these cash flow projections.
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17. Y% - BBRRE

%8

ZE-ZE=F=f-HLEE Yearended 31 March 2013

HNEEFE

EfEE

&5

BUEREMNNE
(Wit 18)

HE

&

i

WE

HERBAF
(Wiit34)

BREEFE

R-B-Zf=f=t-A
s
SiTERE

BEFE

Opening net book amount

Exchange differences

Transfer

Transfer to investment
properties (Note 18)

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Impairment

Disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 34)

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2013

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Net book amount
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2014

Group

RE Rl

RERRE

BE Leasehold

T RET FEREE  improvements, EARTA ERIR

Land and Plantand  fumiture, fixtures & Moulds and Construction- &
buildings machinery and equipment Motor vehicles tooling in-progress Total
AT AT TAT AT AT AT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
68,262 31,431 14,883 4,400 3,840 21,178 149,994
6 - 132 2 - - 140
28,158 - - - - (28,158) -
(35,364) - - - - - (35,364)
- 1,195 1,038 - 43 1,290 3,566
(2,361) (1,588) 2.421) (644) - - (7,014)
(1,554) (8,625) (2,047) (788) (1,121) - (14,135)
- (11,262) (4,738) (100) (2,620) - (18,720)
(1,967) - - - - - (1,967)
55,180 11,151 6,847 2,870 142 310 76,500
59,569 106,988 40,555 8,168 24,229 310 239,819
(4,389) (95,837) (33,708) (5,298) (24,087) - (163,319)
55,180 11,151 6,847 2,870 142 310 76,500
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31 March 2014

17. Y% - BERRE = 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
£E8 (&) Group (continued)
g6 &
£ERZE
Leasehold
BE  improvements,
1HRES REREE furniture, BARIA ERIE
Land and Plant and fixtures and RE Moulds and  Construction- @it
buildings Machinery equipment  Motor vehicles tooling in-progress Total
AR FET bz iz FER TR FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
ZE-ME=BA=T-HILEE Year ended 31 March 2014
BREFE Opening net hook amount 55,180 11,151 6,847 2,870 142 310 76,500
EiER Exchange differences (56) - (26) 0] - - (86)
E Transfer 310 - - - - (310) -
AE Additions 1,500 1,275 1,136 205 108 - 4,224
& Disposals - (13) (107) (35) - - (155)
g Depreciation (1,895) (3,216) (1,611) (725) (120) - (7,567)
BREMFE Closing net book amount 55,039 9,197 6,239 2,311 130 - 72,916
RZE-ME=RA=1-H At 31 March 2014
A Cost 61,323 108,196 41,395 6,364 24,387 - 241,615
ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (6,284) (98,999) (35,156) (4,053) (24,207) - (168,699)
REFE Net book amount 55,039 9,197 6,239 2,311 130 - 72,916

HE-T-=F=A=+—ALEE &6

During the year ended 31 March 2013, certain machinery and equipment

BECEEBRORIEREEL T 2 & THE
REfE - REERE S 546,756,000 7% 7T &

11,964,000 % 70 & EUHUR B B o B R IEK

EEBABNHERRER 2 IELRIE -

R-FB-—ME=A=+—H EEERIT
EFEMBED MO TSI ERE - BEW
Bey - REBEEREETEFEHEBEEN AT
Bl&8 - EUFFEEANESRERATIRE
EREBHENFEVBEELR - BHFEH
RS REREEDRE-EASHAFHN—F
BENERR  HNARSRTEEHERREN
BRTME FREEH

of the Group’s continuing operations and discontinued operations with a
total carrying amount of HK$6,756,000 and HK$11,964,000 respectively
were fully provided for. Machinery and equipment in relations to the
discontinued operations were fully impaired.

As at 31 March 2014, impairment reviews on the machinery and
equipment under the Electronic Products Manufacturing segment
is performed by management. For the purpose of the review, the
recoverable amounts of the related assets are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on the annual financial budgets approved by management.
Cash flows beyond the annual period are extrapolated according to
a constant-growth assumption covering a six-year period which in
aggregate represents the remaining useful lives of major machinery and
equipment.
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17. W% - EERRE =)

EREEFENEZERREMT :

%
R
1% (BiA1)

BENENENDEEEREBERALEAT
SRRNPEMEE - MERNSFHEEXY
RERTLAT - W RIRE B R E R 5 ATl R A R
TENERRR - EEEMERE ERERRR

FRHEEAATKENESE REERESRER
BIPTERA N E 2 RKREAELHE - MEER
RNEMEHIIHZFRSRERANERE
R & o

T REFREFESTAT

MREBZ L RIEF -
10E50F 2 A2 EF

MR EBAIINBE ZEF -
10E50F 24
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31 March 2014

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

—F—mH

2014

Gross margin 19.0%
Growth rate 2.6%
Discount rate (pre-tax) 15.0%

The budgeted gross margin was determined by management based
on past performance and its expectation for market development. The
annual discount rates are before tax and reflect market assessments of
the time value and the specific risks relating to the relevant segment.
Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of
the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts of the
related assets to exceed the recoverable amount. Judgment is required
to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
the changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections.

Net book value of the land and buildings is analysed as follows:

—ZE—MN —F—=
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000

Land and buildings held in Hong Kong on:
Leases of between 10 and 50 years 5,076 5,193

Buildings held outside Hong Kong on:

Leases of between 10 and 50 years 49,963 49,987
55,039 55,180
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17. Y% - #BRRXRE )
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31 March 2014

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Depreciation incurred during the year is attributable to the following:

=F—@O ==
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FRB I S 575 Continuing operations

— HENKAR — Cost of sales 2,087 2,743
— —BRITERAX — General and administrative expenses 4,580 3,228
7,567 5,971
BRI ER Discontinued operations — 8,164
eEes Total depreciation 7,567 14,135
RZZT—WME=A=+—8 ' fRBBUAINME As at 31 March 2014, buildings held outside Hong Kong mainly represent
BZEBFIEARAEBEMN DB AREZERE R the Group’s factory premises located at Heyuan, Guangdong Province of

M2 ME k& TR B RREERHE T - Mainland China, and certain office premises located in Mainland China.
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18. REWHE

a3

T =F=A=+—HILFE
HAF AR B
MY WERREER(HE17)

HIR AR EDFHE
R-Z-—=%=A=+—H

DN
REtE

AREHE

—E-ME=A=+—HILFE
HIF AR E B
e

HPR AR B

R-T-mNE=A=+-—-H
[BRS
REtE

AREDFE

BREMERREFEDNT

I BT AINMBE 2
TEYE
10 & 50F 24
50F LA L2 T4

RZB-—WE=A=+—0 REVXE(BEE
TR MBI ERE) 2 ATE - EFHE
#){E55,200,000/8 7T - EFHELERBELEE B
BREF=FEINETE  2ZHEEERE
MENREBHALOMTEI9) - Bt - X TEFE

WOBERER _MEHMITA -

aEMEEERAERAXA 102
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements were:

Year ended 31 March 2013

Opening net book amount

Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note 17)

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2013
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 March 2014

Opening net book amount

Depreciation

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2014
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

31 March 2014

FET

HK$’000

35,364

35,364

38,651

(3,287)

35,364

35,364

(773)

34,591

38,651

(4,060)

34,591

Net book value of investment properties is analysed as follows:

Investment properties held outside

Hong Kong on:

Leases of between 10 and 50 years

Leases of over 50 years

e —T—=
2014 2013
TET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
34,441 35,208
150 156
34,591 35,364

As at 31 March 2014, the fair value of the investment properties,
including the building portion and the relevant land use rights, valued
by the directors, amounted to approximately HK$55,200,000. The
valuation prepared by the directors approximates the consideration
for the proposed disposal of the entire investment properties pursuant

to a memorandum of understanding entered into with a third party
subsequent to the balance sheet date (Note 39). Accordingly, the fair
value measurement is classified within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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19. T HhfE AR 19. LAND USE RIGHTS
SEMHEL R THFEREATANEERE The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating
R BREVFESTAT : lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows:
=F—@O ==
2014 2013
FET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
R-B-—Z=Fx5=Z2-=-"F0A—H At 1 April 2013/2012
B Cost 11,878 12,521
Rty Accumulated amortisation (2,230) (1,947)
BREFE Net book amount 9,648 10,574
BV AR EDFE Opening net book amount 9,648 10,574
B Amortisation (238) (360)
HENB AR (HiE34) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34) — (566)
HREREDFE Closing net book amount 9,410 9,648

REZB-—MER=FT-—=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2014/2013

B A Cost 11,878 11,878
g f Accumulated amortisation (2,468) (2,230)
BREFE Net book amount 9,410 9,648
HE DT Geographical analysis:
-2 —T—=
2014 2013
FETT FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
UREEAIMEE Outside Hong Kong, held on:
10EH50F 2 A Leases of between 10 and 50 years 9,269 9,503
50 F A L2 T4 Leases of over 50 years 141 145
9,410 9,648
R-ZZE—NE=A=1+—H UREAEZHE As at 31 March 2014, the remaining period of unexpired leases of
TR =T =F 2 ARFEHBELY - R=ZZ— leasehold land in Hong Kong is 33 years. As at 31 March 2014, the
FE=A=1t—H URTEZHEE +ith ¥ remaining period of unexpired land use rights in the PRC ranged from 28
ZHN\FEER+—FZ KRB BABEL - to 51 years.
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31 March 2014

20. HttRHEE 20. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS
£H
Group
=F-@O ==
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
gfES Club debentures 710 710
& R FBHRIE Deposits and prepayments 262 363
972 1,073
EX I\ =
21. BEQTRER 21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY
55
Group
| —ZE—=
2014 2013
FETT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
DN Cost 2,519 2,519
B Provision for impairment (2,519) (2,519)
BREFE Net book amount = =
RBZARK R EE S R RIREFRET ¢ Details of the associated company, which is a limited liability company
established and operating in Japan, are as follows:
BAERES
BoLLERRE
ER{ITRHZEER Percentage of
£z Issued and fully equity interest FEXEK
Name paid up capital held Principal activity
AMFERA S 23,400,000 H 47% HE I B 15 e SR B T B0 M4 ST a1
Daiwa Sound Company Limited YEN23,400,000 Trading and manufacturing of speaker
elements and components
BRI E S AR LFREFEREE At The interest in an associated company had been fully impaired due to its
ZEb DR ER R AR - continuous loss suffered in previous and recent years.
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31 March 2014

22, MtHELRMEE 22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
£8
Group
—Z£—m ===
2014 2013
FAET FETL
HK$’000 HK$’000
HA 9] Beginning of the year 15,136 14,759
e FEE A s Net gain transferred to equity 331 377
HAR End of the year 15,467 15,136
AEHESRMEERE Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:
£8
Group
—ZE— ===
2014 2013
FET FEITL
HK$’000 HK$’000
EmES Listed securities:
[RiEFES — BB - WBTA Equity securities — Hong Kong, denominated in
==K v2 HK$ 308 328
EEETEERRE Key management insurance:
REAHOZEEE  UETH Account value of the insurance contract,
By denominated in US$ 15,159 14,808
15,467 15,136
EHEEFEMSER Market value of listed securities 308 328

RZE—NFEER-_TE—=%f=A=+—H ' &
ZERERBRZAAEDNBELRAE £
EEEZEEERBRER TIRIT - UEREE
12,907,000/ ;t( = Z — = F : 13,665,000/
TTEE (EE27) -

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the fair value of key management insurance
is determined based on the account value. The key management
insurance is pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings amounting
to approximately HK$12,907,000 (2013: HK$13,665,000) (Note 27).
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31 March 2014

23. 78 23. INVENTORIES
£H
Group
=F-@O ==
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
AmFE Trading merchandise 68,455 71,049
R Raw materials 56,138 46,879
T Work-in-progress 14,017 3,922
BURL & Finished goods 24,679 25,098
T8 — B8 Inventories — gross 163,289 146,948
TFEREER Provision for impairment (47,811) (48,917)
78 — #E Inventories — net 115,478 98,031
Hiez - Note:

0] EEZETRASAERRBIEEHEERK
AN FR 49 4505,318,00008 T(= 8B — = 4 ¢
456,544,000/ 7T) °

(ii) HA FRABRIEKEEBZEFRREA
2,498,000/8 Jo(= T — =4 : 72,457,000
TT) e

(iii) FEREBZEHNT

(i

(i)

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of

sales amounted to HK$505,318,000 (2013: HK$456,544,000).

During the vyear, inventories of approximately HK$2,498,000 (2013:

HK$72,457,000) in total have been written off.

Movement in the provision for inventories is as follows:

&5

Group
L —ET—=
2014 2013
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REA—AR At 1 April 48,917 1,997
FERERE Provision for inventory impairment 1,392 47,723
NEFRAE Write-off against provision (2,498) (803)
R=A=+—AH At 31 March 47,811 48,917

(iv) RZTE—=F=ZA=Z=+—HB ' 5ERH
EXEEZERZAGGEREAFEN A
10,123,000 7T (Mi7£34) - FIAZSEFEE
REBHE -
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(iv)

As at 31 March 2013, net carrying amounts of trading merchandise of
approximately HK$10,123,000 were held on consignment at the purchaser
of the disposal group (Note 34). All of such inventories had been sold

subsequently.
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24, BREXREREWEE 24. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES
£8
Group
e —ET—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
JEU & S BRTR Trade receivables 110,842 109,908
O FEMUE ERRIBR B Less: provision for impairment (21,476) (22,075)
89,366 87,833
e Notes receivable 7,058 7,365
96,424 95,198
et - Note:
(a) AEBEZEKREERBEZREIMENTIEE (a) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in
REBAL the following currencies:
5=
Group
—2—N —T—=
2014 2013
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 13,005 19,770
AR RMB 31,810 24,587
e Us$ 45,647 42,226
I CAD 20,380 23,325
110,842 109,908
FEUq & 2 ERTAEEEE AT ERE ° The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values.
EBCEPEZOR Bt ERE¥REN There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as
EEARNEERR - customer base is widely dispersed.
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24, BWEXEBEBRERERE 2 24. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

st - (&) Note: (continued)

(b) AREZAHHHERDERS - RH—K (b) Majority of the Group’s sales are made on open account, with credit terms

= i o . u : : :
szr?E?TLJrji\ SR AR TR R R A 58 generally ranging from 30 days to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade
EHERMZREDMAT : receivables by the dates on which the relevant sales were made is as

follows:
£5
Group

-2 —ZT—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
PRATR Less than 60 days 65,065 60,746
ATRE—BHZTXK 60 days to 120 days 20,494 20,279
BA—B=1tX Over 120 days 25,283 28,883
110,842 109,908
N ZE—-—NWE=A=+—8B" 45 At 31 March 2014, trade receivables of approximately HK$23,541,000
23,541,000/ Tt 2 lEW S XRBE(ZE — (2013: HK$52,593,000) were past due but not considered to be impaired
£ : 52,593,000 7T ) £ B 18 HA (B I A% 7 A because these mainly relate to a number of independent customers for
1B o WWEFIEP R BRRE R 8 R AL 8k whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these

MBILRF o b8 X RUGHIZEIERH & trade receivables by the days of overdue repayment is as follows:

RBREC D ITIA T ¢
&5
Group
—F— ==
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
2 \7A RN Less than 60 days 19,652 43,618
ATRE—BHZ=TXK 60 days to 120 days 1,495 3,901
BA—Ba=tX Over 120 days 2,394 5,074
23,541 52,593
WERSHIRENENEERENEEESE The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired
DBEB2ERBH AR ERBEERE has been assessed by reference to historical information about the
THERERIGERARBHNEEER - BAEYH counterparty default rates and taking into account the credit insurance
T3 B AR GO B o coverage. The existing counterparties do not have significant defaults in
the past.
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24, EWEXREBEREWREE )

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Hiet - (&)

R-ZZE-—WF=A=+—H  BREXKE
21,476,000 jt(= & — = £ : 22,075,000
BT AR AT E R LB R ER 2 G
1 o BRI (B A0 18 R E R B R TR R A
SMEBERFEH RS o b RUGRE BRER 10
T:

24,

31 March 2014

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Note: (continued):

At 31 March 2014, trade receivables of approximately HK$21,476,000
(2013: HK$22,075,000) were impaired and fully provided for. The
individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers who are in
unexpected difficult economic situations. The ageing of these receivables
is as follows:

58
Group

—Z=—MN0 —ZE—=
2014 2013
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB —E_=1TX QOver 120 days 21,476 22,075

FE U & R BR TR E B E T ¢ (c) Movement in the provision for trade receivables is as follows:

3|
Group
-2 —F—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RHIHA—H At 1 April 22,075 2,015
JE UK 2 BR TR (BB Provision for impairment of trade receivables 327 30,836
F N5 AR e UK B B FE L & 2E AR TE I 68 Receivables written off during the year as uncollectable (926) (9,975)
BT E A A Disposal of subsidiaries - (801)
R=A=+—8 At 31 March 21,476 22,075
R=ZFE—=F=A=+—H BKREERKRE (d) As at 31 March 2013, trade receivables included an amount of
BIEHESE%2,370,0008 T 0 ARAB S approximately HK$2,370,000 relating to the disposal group for which the
ZHZBHOEERBRABBEER « FEH credit risks had not been transferred to the purchaser as a result of the
RHIFE34 o RS E ERIBE KE - retention arrangement detailed in Note 34. All of these balances have been
subsequently settled.
EkEE (e) Notes receivable

HREHAE  EEZREAENRASR
ERAFE -R-_Z—NF=A=+—HME
EREEG AE=ERHIBRNETER
MEHEEHE B180KA(ZF— =4 : 180
KA - HEHEFHBARE -

The carrying amounts of notes receivable approximate their fair values
due to their short maturity. As at 31 March 2014, all the notes receivable
represent bank acceptance notes issued by third parties with average
maturity of within 180 days (2013: 180 days), which are denominated in
RMB.
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25. FEMANFE RS RHEMEWS 25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
L]

RECEIVABLES
£8 AT

Group Company
—ZE—MNn —F—= —ZE—N0 — =
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR IE Prepayments 10,366 2,331 141 157
HEZS Rental deposits 63 70 - -
H b EUCFRIB Other receivables 1,532 16,886 - —
11,961 19,287 141 157
R-E—NER-_FT—=F=A=+—H" B8 As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, prepayments mainly represented
NREETEZEARBREREEFECEMNER - payment in advance to suppliers for the purchase of inventories. As
R-E—NMEN-_FT—=F=A=+—H ' & at 31 March 2014 and 2013, other receivables mainly included rebate
fhEWRIE R IEEWE N E TEERKREM receivables, advance to employees and other receivables arising from

EIEEYL o operations.
26. REeRBRLEEY 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
£8 AT

Group Company
—ZF—MH —ZE—= | —ZE—=
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
IRTTAE R Cash at banks 55,328 55,084 182 166
He &R Cash on hand 205 5,076 - —
55,533 60,160 182 166
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26. RERBELEEY») 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
HeRReEEYRFTELREENUATRSE Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the following for the
MEXRF purposes of the statement of cash flows:
58
Group

—ZF—Mr -z =
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$’000
RERBREEED Cash and cash equivalents 55,533 60,160
IRITE S (Mt 27) Bank overdrafts (Note 27) (3,531) —
RE  BeFEWRRITEX Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 52,002 60,160

ReRReFBEYUTINERREN Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

58 AFE
Group Company

=F—-0 —F—= =F—@O ==
2014 2013 2014 2013
FHT FHET FHT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BIT HK$ 19,751 18,553 182 166
ARE RMB 8,171 25,058 - -
ETT USs$ 11,052 7,914 - =
mERT CAD 16,381 8,398 - —
H Al Others 178 237 - —
55,533 60,160 182 166
SRITEZBES HIRITERZZEF = BEELF Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
BIA c EBZHEITEBTIARBIEHRZZ deposit rates. The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in
HERAIERBEERNNIERT EBEAH AR RMB are deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion
ML B GNER 5 40 T B 2 0 152 4% IR AR B BT B9 40 of these RMB-denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
FEARTE © remittance of funds out of Mainland China are subject to the rules and

regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the Government
of the People’s Republic of China.
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27. B& 27. BORROWINGS
55
Group
—E-m —ZF—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
E Current
RITEX (K7 26) Bank overdrafts (Note 26) 3,531 —
HHIRITE R Short-term bank borrowings 5,000 8,000
RITEFEER Trust receipts bank loans 66,706 53,940
R—FAREE 2 RITER Portion of bank borrowings repayable within
one year 12,944 14,690
BB —FERIRHEREREZR  Portion of bank borrowings due for repayment
ZIRITER after one year which contains a repayment on
demand clause 17,347 30,276
HiaER Other borrowings = 6,125
MEREERE Finance lease liabilities - 916
105,528 113,947
B Non-current
MEREERE Finance lease liabilities - 321
- 321
BEE Total 105,528 114,268
HE-ZT-—NF=A=1+—H ' —F&RIHK As at 31 March 2014, bank borrowings of approximately HK$17,347,000
HERERERZRITERA 17,347,000 70 (2013: HK$30,276,000) due for repayment after one year are subject to
(ZZ—=% :30,276,000/87T) - ENEAR repayment on demand clause and, accordingly, had been classified as
FEE- current liabilities.
RZE—=f=A=+—HB ' S§EERTHE As at 31 March 2013, covenant requirements set out in the terms of
FTETFAEBRNRTREZRARTE - A certain banking facilities granted to the Group totalling HK$127,927,000
= K A& I & E F {8 FE KX 280,000,000 7% 7T & in respect of minimum net tangible assets (“NTA”) in a range from
350,000,000/ 7t 2l - 12K B 5% FR1T 2 &b HK$280,000,000 to HK$350,000,000 were breached. As at 31 March
BHEXNB127,927,0008 T - R-ZE—=4F 2013, HK$90,989,000 of these facilities with such breached covenants
—A=+—H EERZELEHATZHE  H had been utilised. Other than that, the Group was in compliance with all
H 90,989,000 BT E & A  BRILASN - KEE other covenants set out in its available banking facilities.

AR ETIRITRVE 2 B RFERTE
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—F-—mFE=HA=+—H

27.

BE®

HE-_ZT-NMF=A=1+—HILHE £EC
BEEMREZRITZZBRE 2 — XML (B
1 &% 1K B 2 & 2= % {8 F& 71 300,000,000 7% 7T
% 330,000,000 L 2M) o bt - RZF—=
F+A RITELERTEZHEREREEF
{& F1 330,000,000 7% 7t T 8 = 180,000,000
JL ' RER —Z— =4+ A #H 300,000,000 %
7T % 160,000,000 87T °

SEER Y —AIBHABRTRERSHERTE
%ﬁ%ﬁé%ﬁ#ﬁﬁéﬂﬁZii@ﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬂﬁi
B (FizE39) -

ETNERZRERERNEXRBAR-_ZE—=F
—A=+t—HERETEXRZAMAERTEL

27.

31 March 2014

BORROWINGS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group has obtained from
two of its major bankers one-off waivers from strict compliance with
the covenant requirements (with respective minimum NTA requirement
of HK$300,000,000 and HK$330,000,000).
NTA requirements for these facilities have also been reduced
from HK$330,000,000 to HK$180,000,000 in July 2013 and from
HK$300,000,000 to HK$160,000,000 in October 2013.

In addition, the minimum

One of the banking facilities available to the Group contains a covenant
which requires the Group not to pledge its land use rights and factory
premises in Heyuan (Note 39).

Disregarding the repayment on demand clauses and taking into account
the possible demand for immediate repayment due to the breach of

BMEE - EEIHERAT covenants of certain borrowings as at 31 March 2013, the maturity of
borrowings is as follows:
£8
Group
—Z—MH —T—=
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
—ER REANERFEWELZE  Within 1 year, with reference to the repayment

schedule 88,181 10,043

—FR - BREERRTRIE 225 Within 1 year, related to borrowings with breached
#TE B 1B K covenants - 90,989
—FFE-FR Between 1 and 2 years 5,937 1,069
—FERFA Between 2 and 5 years 9,730 2,247
AFENE Over 5 years 1,680 9,920
105,528 114,268
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—E-mE=FA=1+—H 31 March 2014
27. B& ) 27. BORROWINGS (continued)
BERABERNATEEAEL The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:
55
Group

| —_E—=

2014 2013

FET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

P TT HKS$ 59,544 76,241

ETT US$ 42,453 38,027

Y= CAD 3,531 —

105,528 114,268

RELER  SEERHYAZEFEER  HiET The Group’s borrowings are all subject to floating interest rate and the

HEERMT : weighted average effective interest rates at the balance sheet date are as

follows:
=g —E—=
2014 2013

HKS$ Us$ CAD HK$ Us$

BT ETT MEA T BT e

RITEFEE R Trust receipt bank loans 2.45% 2.20% - 2.50% 2.50%

faE Borrowings 2.32% 0.88% - 2.01% 0.93%

MEHEARE Finance lease liabilities - - - 1.73% -

RITEX Bank overdrafts - - 3.75% - -

BRTEBEEE #£%5512,907,0008T(== Except for the Group’s borrowings of approximately HK$12,907,000

— =% : 13,665,000 L) 2 EEZEEERRK (2013: HK$13,665,000) secured by the key management insurance

SERAHEHESREE(FBIARNKIMB®RE contract classified as available-for-sale financial assets (Note 22), all
B 5k 22) (EHEIRON « PR A B AR MER - other borrowings are unsecured.

aENEEERAERAA 114
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited



B 7% R R KT 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

—E-mE=F=1+—H 31 March 2014
27. {%ﬁ(%) 27. BORROWINGS (continued)
RZIEBE—NER-_FT—=F=AB=+—H" AT As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the carrying amounts of borrowings
BEERHEBRMEENFEMHELT - approximate their fair values.
EEREHEABERELS AT : The Group’s finance lease obligations were analysed as follows:
]
Group
—F—=
2013
FET
HK$’000
HERAEERBETE Total minimum lease payments
— —FQA — Within one year 929
— —_FFZHFR — Between two and five years 322
1,251
B REAHRE Y RKRMEER Less: Future finance charges (15)
1,236
BMEHEEENHREITET ¢ The present value of finance lease liabilities is analysed as follows:
£
Group
2=
2013
FET
HK$’000
—FRN Within one year 915
—FERFR Between two and five years 321
1,236
HE—TNE=A=+—HI-H  £@& The Group’s finance lease liabilities have been fully settled during the
BEHEABEEEIHEE - year ended 31 March 2014,

15 AN EERERA2A
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31 March 2014

28. EfNEXIKRE 28. TRADE PAYABLES
ASOHENALERS  RE—RBA=TX Payment terms with majority of the suppliers are on open account.
ERTKRe Certain suppliers grant credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days.
FERTE R Z BREE DO ¢ The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:
£
Group
e —_ZE—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
DN K Less than 60 days 70,737 52,378
ANtTRE—BHZ=T+X 60 days to 120 days 10,187 8,527
BBE—BAZTX Over 120 days 3,512 4,520
84,436 65,425
JERT S ERBZRIATEE AR : Trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
£
Group
=% ==
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
& TT HKS$ 7,450 11,574
AR RMB 12,991 10,936
%ETT US$ 54,860 35,705
mERIT CAD 9,135 7,210
84,436 65,425

aEMNEEERAERAA 116
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited




B 7% ¥R 3% I &

Notes to the Financial Statements

—F-—mFE=HA=+—H

29.

30.

FEAS B A e Lt B Y FROR

&N % & MABAT

B
N ZEERR

FETE25E 2

HEHBAREBERES
ZHE 2 AT 3R
(H1it34)

E MR

AL 1S B

Accrued salaries and
bonuses

Receipts in advance

Accrued operating
expenses

Construction fee payables

Payables relating to
retention arrangement
for disposal of
subsidiaries (Note 34)

Other payables

31 March 2014

29. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

AFE

Group Company
—ZF- —E—= —F—MH ==
2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5,645 5,700 - —
2,355 2,690 - —
5,496 9,619 301 295
— 386 - —
2,293 25,293 - =
2,254 568 - _
18,043 44,256 301 295

30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

ERZERMNABRERNREERREHIAR
R - MRERIRS & F— B B - Rl
A RIERTSTE E BB SN B EERE
He AHEERBER L& REBEEE 2K

RN

AL BB A
AL BE B 1

BIERIA B B F

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against

current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority. The balances shown in the consolidated

balance sheet are, after appropriate offsetting, as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities

Net deferred income tax liabilities

%m
Group

= ==
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
241 —
(273) (253)
(32) (253)
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30. EZEMBB @

BEBEFEZSMT

)

FEFBEREER(5Z8H)
— REREXB(ME11)
— ERIEREXER

HAZR End of the year

FREEHBREERABE 2 #
&7 FEEREIHAT AT

(B[R — Wit

30.

Beginning of the year

31 March 2014

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement on net deferred income tax is as follows:

Credited/(charged) to the income statement
— Continuing operations (Note 11)

£
Group
e —E—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(253) (1,138)
221 (113)
— Discontinued operations - 998
221 885
(32) (253)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to offsetting of
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction is as follows:

ELEHEEE Deferred tax assets
BE
Tax losses
=25 —T—=
2014 2013
FET F&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
34 Beginning of the year 154 1,642
ARG () Credited/(charged) to the income statement
— HELEER — Continuing operations 235 (488)
— BRIEEEER — Discontinued operations - (1,000)
235 (1,488)
HAZR End of the year 389 154

efNEmEZERERRAA 118
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31 March 2014

30. EIEFEH @) 30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
EEFRIEAE Deferred tax liabilities
MEBIEITE
HNEBE Accelerated tax wE
Withholding tax depreciation Total
—ZEF—MNO === —Z—MN === —Z—N ===
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
FET FET FET FAET FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REA—H At 1 April - 1,032 407 1,748 407 2,780
FEAEZ(32BR)~  (Credited)/charged to the
% 88 income statement
— BELEER — Continuing operations - — 14 (875) 14 (875)
— BRIEKE — Discontinued
ES operations - (1,032) - (966) - (1,998)
- (1,032) 14 (1,341) 14 (2,373)
R=A=+—8H At 31 March - — 421 407 421 407
iR RE B TH & B T E R 2K AT Be A8 FE AR B s A Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
MERNBERABEEN R AR RAlEER the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
HEBEER ASBUERZRFAREBELD taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
193,867,000/ jo(= & — = 4 : 220,004,000 tax assets of approximately HK$44,280,000 (2013: HK$50,653,000)
7S TT ) HERRIRIE R T & EE 49 44,280,000 % 7T (= in respect of accumulated losses amounting to approximately
T — =4 : 50,653,000/ 7T) * WEFRIAEIE HK$193,867,000 (2013: HK$220,004,000) that can be carried forward
ARG R ERBEF - R=ZT—NHFE = against future taxable income. As at 31 March 2014, accumulated tax
A=+—H R HIEEEL144,615,000% loss amounting to approximately HK$144,615,000 are expiring in 2014 to
T R =ZE—HE—T - \FHHER( =T 2018 (2013: approximately HK$168,851,000, expiring in 2013 to 2017),
— =4 :168,851,000 TR —TE—=2_% while the remaining amounts can be carried forward indefinitely to offset
—HFHREER) - ek T Bl BT PR ER 4K 81 1 2Rk against future taxable income.

ZFERBE A ©
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31 March 2014

31. KX 31. SHARE CAPITAL
— —F—=
2014 2013
BRAEE H{E x5 & B [EILED
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
Fhie FET FHE FHET
’000 HK$°000 '000 HK$’000
JERE Authorised:
L@EBRESRMEEC10B L  Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 1,000,000 100,000 1,000,000 100,000
BEETRHAR Issued and fully paid:
TRAEFMREME0.10/8 7 Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each
4] Beginning of the year 394,238 39,424 315,390 31,539
FATREFRAD (BT () Placing of news shares
(Note (i) 43,000 4,300 — —
BATHAE AR AD (A77£ (i)  Issue of shares from
rights issue (Note (i) - - 78,848 7,885
AR End of the year 437,238 43,724 394,238 39,424
HiaF - Note:

()

R-ZEBE—=FEAA=-++B £SEBHTT
BEARG  ATTEB020B T ETT
43,000,000 A& #T E @A AR D o A R E &M
FTES R FRIEF 58 512,470,000 787 © &
4,300,000 7 70 A BR & B% 2 842 58 7,682,000 75
JC($NBR 488,000 B T HE X B A% ) ARARKR

{3358 -

REBE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=+—HLEFE"
SEBTTHR - LITEE2BILETT
78,847,889 I ¥ & AR AR 0 o A A #LAR M
FTIE13 M) 58 F 58 4 15,770,000 B 7T * & F
7,885,000 7 7T A B /3 iR 7 84 58 7,038,000 78
TL(H% 847,000 T H X B Ak ) AR AR

0 (E

aMEEERAERAXA 120
Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

(if)

On 27 September 2013, the Company completed a placing of 43,000,000
new shares at the placing price of HK$0.29 per share. The gross proceeds
received by the Company from the placing were HK$12,470,000, among
which HK$4,300,000 was credited to the share capital account and the
balance of HK$7,682,000 (net of professional fees of HK$488,000) was
credited to the share premium account.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, 78,847,889 ordinary shares were
issued at the subscription price of HK$0.2 each by way of rights issue.
The gross proceeds received by the Company from the rights issue were
HK$15,770,000, among which HK$7,885,000 was credited to the share
capital account and the balance of HK$7,038,000 (net of professional fees
of HK$847,000) was credited to the share premium account.
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32. f#& 32. RESERVES
(a) £H (a) Group
AfthE
tHEE
Efifit
Available-
BRRE -0 EERE for-sale
() BEfHE (Wi (i) financial
Capital Capital RERE Statutory assets £
reserve redemption Exchange reserve revaluation Accumulated @it
(Note (i)) reserve reserve (Note (ii)) reserve losses Total
FET FEr z:23 TEr 7Er FEn FEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ-=FWA-A  As 1 April 2013 41,201 1,402 1,387 90 (88) (96,239) (52,247)
AERER Profit for the year - - - - - 8,342 8,342
HERE Currency translation
differences - - (5,378) - - - (5,378)
At HESHER Fair value gains on
NFENE avallable-for-sale
financial assets - - - - 331 - 331
RZZ-mE At 31 March 2014
=B=1-H 41,201 1,402 (3,991) 90 43 (87,897) (48,952)
121 e EEERER A A
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31 March 2014

32. fEfE» 32. RESERVES (continued)

(a) SB (&) (a) Group (continued)
AfhLE
Bl
Avalleble- RBEA/
BAGE EA e for-sale (Z:1ER)
(W) BRGEE (W) financial Retained
Capital Capital AR Statutory assets earnings/
reserve redemption Exchange reserve revaluation (accumulated @i
(Note (i)) reserve reserve (Note (i) reserve losses) Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZ-ZFMA-H A1 Apil 2012 41,201 1,402 11,728 90 (690) 74,769 128,500

REEBE Loss for the year - - - - - (171,008) (171,008)

Sshg Currency translation

diferences - - (1,93 - - - (1,93)

IEHESRHEE Impairment of available-for-

RiE sale financial assets - - - - 225 - 225

HENBARLR Release of exchange

L reserve upon disposal of
subsidiaries - - (6,409 - - - (8,403
At HECRARE Falr value gains on
NFEkE avalable-for-sale
financial assets - - - - 317 - 3
R2%F-= At 31 March 2013
ZA=+-A 4,201 1,402 1,387 ) 89 196,239 (52247)
ez Notes:

(0] REB 2 EARFBERARREITLZ [0) Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
BOMERBRER -NANEFEE the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company
EHRMEETARAMNMERRRA and the nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries
HEMEZEZR  MER-_TTF transferred to the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation in
F=ZA=+—BHBRFEERRAHI R 1994, and the credit of HK$51,594,000 from share capital as a
P 7S T 8 1) 2 A5 B9 2 #4 51,594,000 result of a reduction of the Company’s share capital taken place
BT ° during the year ended 31 March 2000.

(ii) B KB 2 Y B 2 ) 2 A TE A AN (ii) Statutory reserve of a subsidiary in Mainland China can be utilised
giﬁﬁﬁ’:\ﬁﬁﬁ ARz EESIE inE to offset future losses or increase the capital of the subsidiary.
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32. B

(b)

ZN

R-ZZE—=FmMA—H

REEEE Loss for the year

R=Z—NF At 31 March 2014
=A=+—H

R-ZT——FMA—H At1 April 2012

REEZEE Loss for the year

RIT—=%F At 31 March 2013
=A=+—8

Kz

32.

At 1 April 2013

RARZBABBAEEER — A
NOEBARARREITZROE
{EF A #2 Daiwa BVI Limited B 2
TERARREMBAREEFEW
EZEBE MER-_ZTZTZTF=A
=+ —AMEBREERNEERRAT
B E A& 51,594,000 87T °

REBRE-NAN—FREE " &
ABBRE DK TR - MR R EE
AERE RS - REHAR
ERA DK 20 () DK 1& TN BEARERE
BRIz BEBH(EEFEERE
EREEITRAR B G E 2 B -

RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company

31 March 2014

(RETEE)

AR RERF

EXRBE#E (BaE (i)) (Accumulated

Capital Contributed losses)/
redemption surplus retained st
reserve (Note (i) earnings Total
FET FET FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1,402 72,309 (165,020) (91,309)
— (332) (332)
1,402 72,309 (165,352) (91,641)
1,402 72,309 34,503 108,214
— (199,523) (199,523)
1,402 72,309 (165,020) (91,309)

Note:

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued ordinary shares of Daiwa BVI Limited and
the value of net assets of its underlying subsidiaries pursuant to
a group reorganisation in 1994, plus the credit of HK$51,594,000
from share capital as a result of a reduction of the Company’s
share capital taken place during the year ended 31 March 2000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition
that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii)
the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.
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33. EFBRERER

(a)

BRBAER(BE) GBS FHEE (a)

(ER)zFREFEATR

BBATEM, (R BEER L
e

AHEE

B WA

AR

I8 N

Ht BV & ERE

JE o B 2 AR TR (B
EFRER R
EFEERE

VI - HER R RERE
AR ESREERE

HEME  BERREZERS
(Mzz$) — B(E
HEHBANRRRBS RS
2R ARAR

B A ) 2B Mk
REESWD
2

FEW R BRIR M B IR 1R
TANFOR - e R EME R FIR
e &R ARIA

FE 2 R B B A FE A 5RIR

REFHEE/(ERIZHS
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33. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

generated from/(used in) operations:

Profit/(loss) before income tax including
discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment of other intangible assets

Impairment of trade receivables

Provision for impairment of inventories

Direct write-down of inventories

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment — net

Adjustments upon final settlement of
retention arrangement in relation to
disposed subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Changes in working capital:

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Trade payables

Accruals and other payables

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax to cash

= —E—=
2014 2013
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
10,822 (166,704)
(942) (880)
2,349 5,319
8,578 15,619
= 1,125

327 30,836
1,392 47,723
= 72,457

- 18,720

= 225

41 (15,059)
(3,181) —
- (89,501)
19,386 (80,120)
(30,313) (33,116)
(2,455) (46,183)
6,700 3,026
15,446 12,719
(2,767) 27,509
5,997 (66,165)
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33. AFRERER#) 33. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(b) EEHBEESHRERA HELHER (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
E-E - BERIENERES from disposals of land use rights, and property, plant and
1% equipment comprise:
—ZF—H —F—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
ARTEDFE Net book amount 155 7,014
HE L ERE - W% - s REE  Net (loss)/gain on disposal of land use
(B1#8), /WS FE rights, and property, plant and equipment (41) 15,059
HE TR - W Proceeds from disposals of land use rights,
W28 & 2R P15 5K IE and property, plant and equipment 114 22,073
ME T AR W% KEREE (Loss)/gain on disposal of land use rights, and property, plant
(EB18) WEREWT - and equipment are summarised as follows:
=F—@O ==
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRB IS TS Continuing operations (41) 17,529
BRI EETR Discontinued operations - (2,470)
(41) 15,059
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34.

ERIEEERR

HE_Z—=F=A=+—HI-HMH  £&F
METIEFHEERMEFLEMLAMEE

EIDE -

o REHE THESRE AR ZEIHBRET
B E=7 0 8K {E563,168,0007% T & Uk
w (FEEHNIES) - HEEBARFERESE
TR EHER - HEEEERSE THEAS
% RRESDOIERERIECEETR -

BE_ZT-—NER_T—=6=A=+—HIt
HE - HESRNEHTIBERERR/ERILLK
T o

R-BE-—NOE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HEEZ

34.

31 March 2014

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group abandoned the
operations of the “Consumer Electronics and Electronics Components
and Parts Manufacturing” segment.

In addition, it disposed of its equity interests in the disposal group as set
out in Note 5 to an independent third party at a total cash consideration
of approximately HK$63,168,000. The disposal group was principally
involved in the distribution of electronic components. This, together with
certain related operations, and the abandoned segment were classified
as discontinued operations.

The relevant results were presented as discontinued operations in the

consolidated income statement for the years ended 31 March 2014 and
2013.

The results of these discontinued operations for the years ended 31

BRI EEBRERNOT - March 2014 and 2013 are set out below:
—ZF—N0 —F—=
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
WA Revenue - 500,246
X Expenses - (722,283)
PR AT & 18 & tH & B B 2 Al e Loss before income tax and gain on disposal of
subsidiaries - (222,0837)
FEREL Income tax expense = (2,110)
DRIMELEMBRE R L ENBAT  Loss for the year from discontinued operations
W &= BB 18 before gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (224,147)
HEMB AR Z WS Gain on disposal of subsidiaries = 39,501
HENMBARMERRES T2 &% Adjustments upon final settlement of retention
EGEES arrangement in relation to disposed subsidiaries 3,181 —
BRIEEEEBHNRF,(EBE) Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued
operations 3,181 (184,646)
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34. BRILEREXEK 34. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
REEEH HESBEZEENRABBETENE The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposal group as at the
W date of disposal are as follows:

FAET
HK$’000

tﬂ’%ﬁE‘gfﬁ Net assets disposed
W - 2R o N b AR A Property, plant and equipment, and land use rights 2,533
FE Inventories 58,100
JEWEZERB R EMRENE E Trade receivables and other current assets 138,101
ReRBEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 46,849
BRIEFSTHAE Deferred income tax liabilities (1,032)
FEREEEREEREMRBAR Trade payables and other current liabilities (94,728)
31 Borrowings (142,374)
FEAI AR SR Tax payable (1,783)
HEEEREFEE Carrying amounts of net assets disposed 5,666
HpFERAE Exchange reserve released (8,408)
FERBEXEERY Legal and professional fees 1,105
BN ERIE Tax on disposal 3,444
REFEHE) Adjustments on consideration (Note) 19,567
LS M S| R A E M 1T B X Other administrative expenses arising from the disposal 2,288
& s Gain on disposal 39,501
REEMHHEZRERE Cash consideration in accordance with sale and purchase agreement 63,168

et - Note:

R EAERZR AL EFE kR E E R E R
HHNRREAE - REEEHZ SEERETHRA
RBE ER_Z—NWF_A=-+N\B MERNK
ZERBE B R—_E—=F=A=+—8"
FRAREHZTEERAKE 2 EWKEERE - K
11,324,000 B TIRB €& - RABNERKIE - K=
T—=F=A=t+—HB ' AELZFERKMNEZE
WRBBHHRIBEEEE T E REREEIRE -

The adjustment on consideration represents the original carrying amounts of any
unsold inventories or unsettled trade receivables. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement, the Group is required to repay the purchaser any such balances as
at 28 February 2014 subject to a pre-determined cap. Consequently, any unsold
inventories and unsettled trade receivables as at 31 March 2013, after setting off
with the retention money withheld amounting to HK$11,324,000, were treated as
payables to the purchaser. The unsold inventories and unsettled trade receivables
were included in the Group’s inventories and trade receivables, respectively, as at
31 March 2018.
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34. BRIBEEK = 34. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
BE-—E—=F=A=1+—HLHH, EHHE Total consideration in relation to the disposal, fully paid by cash
HEZRELASE  HRZEUBRSIMN during the year ended 31 March 2013
FET
HK$’000
HEEEBARRESTEZ AN ¢ An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the disposal group is as
follows:
BeRE Cash consideration 63,168
R - Less:
BEXRREZRES Retention money withheld by the purchaser (11,324)
HEEERREZHeRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents included in the disposal group (46,849)

KREEESELZIRENE - BB 4  Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows from

LREZEY 2 RN FE investing activities 4,995
| —ZE—=
2014 2013
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000

ERIREXEBRCEERE Cash flows from discontinued operations
KEFEE A ZFES Net cash used in operating activities - (79,571)

REEE (TR ELXZ2FRE Net cash (used in)/generated from investing

activities (5,694) 3,933
RERBELEZFRS Net cash generated from financing activities - 18,045
ReREFHE Net cash flows (5,694) (57,593)
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35. REEESZeMIA 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RELBzEERE»2em I EmEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
N as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
8
Group
—E-m
2014
G =
cRMEE
Available-
for-sale fEEREWFIE
financial Loans and wE
THEE Financial assets assets receivables Total
FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AtHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 15,467 - 15,467
JEUEEIRB L EIWEYE  Trade and notes receivables - 96,424 96,424
& & E At FE U R Deposits and other receivables - 1,857 1,857
ReRBFEY Cash and cash equivalents - 55,533 55,533
15,467 153,814 169,281
cEas.
R 85 A A
Financial
liabilities
at amortised wE
THERE Financial liabilities cost Total
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
JEf & BRI Trade payables 84,436 84,436
BE Borrowings 105,528 105,528
FEAST B A I HL A FE AT 3K Accruals and other payables 15,688 15,688
205,652 205,652
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35. FERE sz T A

(&)

EHEE

AHEHESREE

FE s 2 SRR A I R IR B

ZE M H A R UK
REMRSEFBY

EHEE

FEfS =& X RRIA
fEE

PN B A R At FE A5 5K
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35. FINANCIAL

(continued)

Financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
Trade and notes receivables
Deposits and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Trade payables
Borrowings
Accruals and other payables

31 March 2014

INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

£
Group
—E—=
2013
A&
Available-
for-sale &8 R EWKFIE
financial Loans and ®iE
assets receivables Total
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
15,136 — 15,136
— 95,198 95,198
— 17,119 17,119
— 60,160 60,160
15,136 172,477 187,613
TRBE -
TR K AN
Financial
liabilities
at amortised #@E
cost Total
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
65,425 65,425
114,268 114,268
41,566 41,566
221,259 221,259
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35.

36.

31 March 2014

REFSsZ2eMTIA 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(& (continued)
AT
Company
—E—1N —_E—=
2014 2013
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
THEE—BEREKE Financial assets — loans and receivables
RERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 182 166
SHMAE  REBHERK Financial liabilities at amortised cost
FEAST B A I HL A PR ST 3R Accruals and other payables 301 295
RIE 36 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

K-FT-MER-FT-—=F=A=+—8 H
R BB TR RERORE - B
HERORBRBEAHOT

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the future aggregate minimum lease
payments in respect of land and buildings under non-cancellable
operating leases were as follows:

&8
Group

= —F—=

2014 2013

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

F—FNRN Not later than one year 3,620 3,517

F_FEERAFN Later than one year and not later than five years 9,191 958

12,811 4,475

LTEMs  SEZEEHN—RAP—F=h Generally, the Group’s operating leases are for terms of one to five years.
& o

R-B—NER-_ZT—=F=A=+—H0" &
B8 B EME R ZAHE -

R-ZB—NER-_ZT—=F=A=+—80" 2
AR EEAR A -

RZZB-—NE=A=+—H SEKAFHR
BEAZRAEE -

The Group did not have other significant commitments at 31 March 2014
and 2013.

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Company did not have any
significant commitments.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group and the Company have no significant
contingent liabilities.
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31 March 2014

37. HHWE QT Eﬁ?ﬁﬁ&@ﬂﬂﬁ% 37. INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
RAEFIE — A F FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
e —EF—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
JEEMRM IRE - BRAE Unlisted shares/investments, at cost 44,715 44,715
N EPNEIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 340,542 328,886
Bt OB Less: provision for impairment (200,000) (200,000)
140,542 128,886
HE-_ZT—=F=A=+—HILHHA AR During the year ended 31 March 2013, provision for impairment of
MEBARIZERSIFHEB TZEEIIFEL HK$200,000,000 was made on an amount due from a subsidiary as
EEKERE HEERBERKCEEERIE - a result of the impairment of assets recognised and operating losses
FEAEERUMNBAR KRB ZREREES incurred by certain major operating entities relating to discontinued
200,000,000 7T ° operations which are directly or indirectly held by the subjected
subsidiary.
APpalz EERMBARIERGET : Particulars of significant subsidiaries are as follows:
R=A=t-R
FrERER At
FRAL/RIBY Percentage of
Place of TEREHY BRAIRMRRA equity interest
A7 incorporation/ Principal place Issued and fully heldasat EEEREH TTEH
Company establishment of operation paid up capital 31 March  Type of legal entity Principal activities
ZE-m %=
2014 2013
EREERR
Interests held directly
Daiwa BVI Limited AERAES AERAHE 10,000 %7 BRERAR RARR
British Virgin Islands  British Virgin US$10,000 100%  100% Limited liability company Investment holdings
Islands
BEsAER
Interests held indirectly
ANEFEEARERAR AERAES AERAEE 1800%7 100%  100% BREELA RARR
Daiwa Distribution Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands  British Virgin US$1,800 Limited liability company Investment holdings
(‘DDHL) Islends
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37.

HKE QR
NRIFRIE —

27

Company

BREERE(S)

NGIIE))

SREL/ R
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Interests held indirectly (continued)

ANEEARAA

Daiwa Associate Limited

Elite Gentury Holdings Limited

HRETIRARAT

Cypress Electronics Limited

ANAEARAA

Daiwa Associate (H.K.) Limited

ANBERRAA

Daiwa Manufacturing Limited

aNES(ER)ERAA

Daiwa Trading (Guangdong) Limited

EEREEFARAR

Vastpoint Imtec Electronics Limited

AERLEE
British Virgin Islands

AERLEE
British Virgin Islands

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

WEE&EWWE 37.

TTRENG
Principal place
of operation

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

&%
Hong Kong

31 March 2014

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (continued)

BRARARRE
Issued and fully
paid up capital

EI
US82

10,000%7
US$10,000

2ET
HK$2

EBR100%T

Ordinary shares of HK$100; and

ERZBETR 3,000,000
AR

Non-voting deferred shares of
HK$3,000,000 (Note (i)

4ET
HKS4

4R
HKS$4

1007
HK$100

R=B=1-A
fisRER AL
Percentage of
equity interest

held as at
31 March

EEERER
Type of legal entity

“B8-Q ZF-=

2014

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

2013

100% BREFAR

Limited liability company

100% BREFAR

Limited liability company

100% BREMAR

Limited liability company

100% BREFAR

Limited liability company

100% BRERAA
Limited liability company

100% BREERH
Limited liability company

100% BREFAHF
Limited liability company

IERH

Principal activities

RERR

Investment holdings

RERR

Investment holdings

HESTREER
Manufacturing of electronic
products

mEERAREEE
RiTBRH

Provision of management
and administrative
service to group
companies

PEET BN RADET
ZXEERS

Manufacturing of electronic
products

RERR

Investment holdings

EFTEMEH
Distribution of electronic
components
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37.

28

Company

BRSERE(S)

Interests held indirectly (continued)

IRANEREFRIERAR
(Beijing Daiwa Vastpoint Electronics
Technology Limited)

REEF(TR)ERAR

(China Faith Electronics (Heyuan| Limited)

ANEF(TR)ERAR

(Daiwa Electronics (Heyuan) Company

Limited)

aN(ER)EFIRERLR

(Daiwa (Zhaoqing) Electronics Industrial

Limited)

eREE(TR)ERAR
(Unity Industrial (Heyuan) Limited)

EREREET(RIARAT

(Vastpoint Imtec Electronics (Shenzhen)

Limited)

REETES(LE)ARAA

Vastpoint Imtec Electronics (Shanghai) Ltd.
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AL/ R
Place of
incorporation/
establishment

hE
Mainland China

hE
Mainland China

hE
Mainland China

hE
Mainland China

hE
Mainland China

hE
Mainland China

hE
Mainland China

TERERY
Principal place
of operation

e
Mainland China

e
Mainland China

e
Mainland China

e
Mainland China

E
Mainland China

e
Mainland China

E
Mainland China

31 March 2014

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (continueq)

BRTRARRE
Issued and fully
paid up capital

1 RE SE % 800,000 AR
Registered and paid up capital of
RMB800,000

AR RESER1,200000FT
Registered and paid up capital
US$1,200,000

it RE&B3,600,000%T
Registered and paid up capital of
US$3,600,000

HMREAARS 384 000X
Registered and paid up capital of
US$3,384,000

RallGE e
2,050,000%7

Registered and paid up capital of
US$2,050,000

it RESEA
2,000,000%7

Registered and paid up capital of
HK$2,000,000

Rl
300,000%7

Registered and paid up capital of
US$300,000

W=E=1-H
frEREADL
Percentage of
equity interest

held as at

31 March

“B-@ ZF--

2014 2013
100%  100%
100%  100%
100%  100%
100%  100%
100%  100%
100%  100%
100%  100%

EEEEER
Type of legal entity

NELERALA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NELERRAA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NELERAAA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NETERALA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NERERALA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NERERAAA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

NERARELA
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

IERK

Principal activities

EFTAAEH
Distribution of electronic
components

RETTHEER
Manufacturing of electronic
products

PEETHEER
Manufacturing of electronic
products

BETTHEER
Manufacturing of electronic
products

BEERER
Manufacturing of electric
wires

EfTAMAEH
Distribution of electronic
components

EFTEMtEH
Distribution of electronic
components



B 7% 3R P R

Notes to the Financial Statements

—F-—mFE=HA=+—H

37. &
/\

BLARANWREREWHE 37.

YNGINE)

31 March 2014

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY (continued)

IERERY
Principal place
of operation

HRAY/ R
Place of
A incorporation/
Company establishment
BERERR S

Interests held indirectly (continued)

Daiwa Distribution (B.C.) Inc.

Daiwa Distribution (Ontario) Inc.

Daiwa Holdings Inc.

Canada

VEYNIN-E]

ERFIARRZHMBRR » HARARARES
RASEERERARAEEAAFEXES
BEFR FARNKEABHEEFEZ
MEBAR - ERGHMHEARZER &=
AR LK ©

BRERELER LB R RERESHER
EEEOE  RIFLBRBREES LA
100,000,000,000,000 # 7T

BE_Z-HNFR-_F—=F=A=+

—H
Jtﬁ&%ﬁﬂ% AYEEFNEETZEEER

REREMRLZ EE AR EEXEA

Hiat -
(i)

E2RA
(ii)
(il

$ o
(iv)

A% BEEENBRARTXEEBFREX

NEAREIRLE ~ MEX

British Columbia, Canada

JIEIN

Ontario, Canada Canada

MEAZAHE mex

Ontario, Canada Canada

R=A=1-H
FERERAL
Percentage of
ERTRARRE equity interest
Issued and fully heldasat “EEEER ITER
paid up capital 31 March  Type of legal entity Principal activities
Z8-p Z%-=
2014 2013
300000107 100% 100% EREFAT HERDHEHERR
(AD300,000 Limited liability company ETER
Sales and distribution
of computer and
electronic products
700,000 1170 100% 100% EREAAF HERHHERERR
CAD700,000 Limited liability company ETER
Sales and distribution
of computer and
electronic products
2230157 100%  100% EREFAHF RERR
(CAD223,015 Limited liability company Investment holdings
Notes:
(i) The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

opinion of the Company’s directors and the Group’s management,
principally contributed the results or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would result in
particulars of excessive length.

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, and are not entitled
to any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$100,000 billion
has been distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time during
the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

The English names of the group companies incorporated in Mainland China
represent the best effort by the directors in translating its Chinese name as
they do not have official English names.
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38. FHAEALRS 38.
RZZT—WME=H=+—H ' Leading Trade
Limited & China Capital Holdings Investment
Limited D RI#EB AR R FI17.42% (T —=4 :
19.32% ) }2.30.64% (= Z — = 4F : 33.98%) %

e EMAIRARIYBHARESEEREERRKR
iR 1 - PR AR R R AIEIRAL -

MASERETBERAB ZERAE HEA
MEHERREEERE T RMBMEERE
BEAFEIRZITRNIEE - AAKEMZ
AREKRANERZE - AZTA/AEENE
BEAL - BREALAIURBEARER -

BEBREL B FROBEALERS -
AEERBEA LR AR EHDT T HEAR
BALR SRS A LR 5 A S
mF :

(a) BEBREALIZRS

NEEHEHESR

361 Alden Inc. Inc.

(i) 361 Alden Inc. &215& 5t £ KR
BRL(ARRES)LARES - &
BEHERSHEHEXRBREIRE °

EMEEZERERQA 136

Daiwa Associate Holdings Limited

31 March 2014

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2014, Leading Trade Limited and China Capital Holdings
Investment Limited owned 17.42% (2013: 19.32%) and 30.64% (2013:
33.98%) of the Company’s shares, respectively. These companies are
under the control of the Company’s directors, Mr. Lau Tak Wan and
Ms. Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, who are collectively regarded as the ultimate
controlling parties.

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or any
member of its key management personnel or their close family members
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant influence over
the parties in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa,
or where the Group and the parties are subject to common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions
entered into in the ordinary course of business between the Group
and its related parties and the balances arising from related party
transactions in addition to the related party information shown elsewhere
in the financial statements.

Operating lease rental paid to 361 Alden

(a) Transactions with related parties
%H
Group
=% ==
2014 2013
k=3 FET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
(i) 1,331 1,360

Note:

(i) 361 Alden Inc. is beneficially owned by Mr Lau Tak Wan and Ms
Chan Yuen Mei, Pinky, directors of the Company. Operating lease
rental expense is determined at rate mutually agreed between the
parties.
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38. BEREAETRF @ 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) EAEREA LT (b) Balances with related parties
AT]
Company
-2 —F—=
2014 2013
k23 FET FHETT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FE UL BT B 2 Rl ZRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries
(Hi1a£37) (Note 37) (i 140,542 128,886
KtaF Note
0] UK B A R RIB BERR - & (i) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and non-

FB R B E ARG 28|

interest bearing, and have no fixed terms of repayment. These

B BT © amounts are denominated in HKS.
(c) FTEEEAS 2R (c) Key management compensation
£8
Group
—ZE—MN —F—=
2014 2013
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
T & R&ERL Salaries and allowances 6,972 5,043
TE4T Bonuses 50 2,024
BIRERA — FHEEKETE] Pension costs — defined contribution plans 283 232
7,305 7,299
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39.

HEHHRER

R-ZZE—MFERA A NREBEERRER
ERAR(E=ZFIERT THEE RAREH
PEANMES(ER)ARAGBN(AMER)
AEBEZEABREMBRARZ 2 HE - ZHB
RAIZEBZEERSEEMNR R L FE R
ERBEREEY DEZHSEHEBARARE
100,000,000 7Tt (%7 125,000,000 7t ) ° & &
BEFE RKEE—25T < AR 5,000,000
J0(#16,000,000% L) - EERXE E %7
(BEED#)%  SEBKIE LTS AR
20,000,000 7T (4925,000,000 78 7T) ° M iREE A
R % 75,000,000 7T (%7 95,000,000 7% 7t ) #5 7
S E & EETA AU ©

REFHETE  RNEEFEHTKEEMERAR
AEBEFF M HEEWZ  ZBERADTEER
TAREEE A RZEE A LR 36 E A &E LR
EREBEHTHAMES T - HEZHNY
EaE SREAEREZAFERLE—&RE
K H)ER & $I{E

WEEBERERBTEEHE  SEBKTEA
ARES —2£3:] & AR #5,000,0007C(4
6,000,000 7)) « BEEREENE —£35]2
AR 5,000,000 7T (# 6,000,000 70 ) {E A

f& -
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39.

31 March 2014

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE
SHEET DATE

On 16 May 2014, the Group entered into a memorandum of
understanding (“MOU”) with Vision Best Holdings Limited (“Best Vision”),
a third party, to dispose of the Group’s entire equity interest in Daiwa
Trading (Guangdong) Limited (“Daiwa GD”), a wholly owned subsidiary.
The major assets of the subsidiary are the Group’s land use rights and
factory premises in Heyuan. Cash consideration for the disposal is
RMB100 million (HK$125 million) and a deposit of RMB5 million (HK$6
million) was received by the Group on the same date of the MOU. By the
time when the sale and purchase agreement (“S&P”) is entered into, the
Group will receive RMB20 million (HK$25 million) as additional deposit.
The remaining balance of RMB75 million (HK$95 million) will be received
by the Group upon completion.

Pursuant to the MOU, Daiwa GD shall be required to enter into a lease
agreement with the Group upon completion of the proposed disposal
under which certain part of the factories to be disposed of would be
leased to the Group free of any rental charges and management fee for
a period of 36 months from the date of such agreement. The fair value
of such lease, together with the cash consideration mentioned above,
represent the total consideration for the proposed disposal.

In case where the Group does not proceed with the S&P, it is required to
compensate RMB5 million (HK$6 million) in addition to the full refund of
the deposits received amounting to RMB5 million (HK$6 million).
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BZRE  R_T—=FN\A=ZTBRRTZBRRBFKR
B CRBRIER TR & -

BT & 2T

1. B B2 BB

BRI 2 BN EREARAAIAEES ]
RSEERHBERE FARSFHRAEHAN
SEIEARREEBFELEMZ ZRRE
o ARARB/PIREER(AEEREREL
BR)AIEHAKRE DN ERR - ARRTER
REEERCES EE ABHERRLE
i BREHRKREBBNEREHARE
tmEEANNAEER -

2. BB R &

MEREFIARESSEE  BAXSAR
EINRELMARERZIFRAT - REHHRE
WHEELEZMAEFERERERTEELZ
RERBRERTE  HARRLIZEZRAEA
THAFHRTS -

3. B AR R

BT RN 2 RBRT  EEGA 2%
RIEAREBBERNSERZBEZRIETX ()
BRETE 2 ERZM A RBRN 2 EAHE -

REBREZORAEE (KRG IFEETABE
BBREZFEIHEEZIARNAERBEER
2 VTEREEHZEE-T—21)BZHA
DA EEBEERSEERR  ENEMAR
HEEhm TR F SRR L ER T SR ER2
BHNZEERSEEDTBREERZEE (I
REERE)R  ZZHOBTAR2EM -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has, in accordance with Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), adopted the
New Share Option Scheme, as approved by the Shareholders of the Company at
the Annual General Meeting held on 30 August 2013.

A summary of the principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme is set out as
below:

1. Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant Options to selected Eligible Participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group or
any Invested Entity. The Company considers that the Invested Entity, an
entity in which the Group holds an equity interest, may contribute to the
Group’s profits. The Company also considers that the granting of the
Options to the employee, director, officer or consultant of the Invested
Entity would provide an incentive for their contribution to the Invested
Entity which indirectly benefits the Group.

2. Administration of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board whose decision on all matters arising in relation to this Scheme
or its interpretation or effect shall (save as otherwise provided herein and
in the absence of manifest error) be final and binding on all persons who
may be affected thereby.

3. Grant and acceptance of Options

Subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, the Board
may, in its absolute discretion, invite any Eligible Participant to take up
Options to subscribe for Shares at a price calculated in accordance with
paragraph (4) below.

An offer of the grant of an Option shall be made to Eligible Participants
in writing (and unless so made shall be invalid) in such form as the Board
may from time to time determine and shall remain open for acceptance
by the Eligible Participant concerned for a period of twenty-one (21) days
from the date upon which it is made provided that no such offer shall
be open for acceptance after the earlier of the 10th anniversary of the
Adoption Date or the termination of the New Share Option Scheme or
the Eligible Participant to whom such offer is made has ceased to be an
Eligible Participant.
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3.

REREABRER)

AR A A B BB R B X 1.00/8 7T 2
REEERE - EARFRRAERZEE
ERFFZMBREE 2 —AMO K HER Lt
1.00/8 T2 RERF - MIBBREERSR D EE

B R B DI B R B R P I 2 B D
MR B 2 EMEL - EEER 2 BARE
BRBNBEVEARERERIMES L —
FROBBSETEZEH -

TREBRERRDER

AR AR AAREE LS EBA - SR ERE
R EITERITEBREMMS RRMOEE - ]
1T 2 B0k (0 B AHE - =106 BB A AR
P e B A Bz B D REE 2 BUEGR - IR
Fi@ A MR R E = +—(21) BAR(HER) K
BARRRBAEN B MR 2 ERER
ARBBRAARAGESFZEEREA)ALHE
KRBT ARSI BB B AR

BRAB KSR N A2 HRAR - ARAEZ
ABERERELARERAASEREN B
BESEAREZERE KL BREIEMN
REOFREAFE 2 EMEN(BRARAEBR
B 22 SHEM) » IMNTTREARER S T A3
RBETZENDEXMERBERZ ARERZM
AR AT ARER - 02 P A 7 T B 70 i A e
ERTTEE B (S fitZ B AARD R T EPHRRA
BPERLZA - AIRIENRERNEPER 2
BR)(TTEBR ) E#T2HE BTN
ERERSMA - Al S<ER/HEATES
ARITEBMRZRIRNHAIEL Z AR E K
H ok (6 BRI e B R /TE B #2580 - A
Z R E IR SGER KR TR A 2
AL B R EAM D IKERIN) o RIT RS BARIR AL 3
ZEMBEEARAZEBFERNLAARRRZR
REeMERERITEAR  HTEMERERE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Grant and acceptance of Options (continued)

A non-refundable nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by the
grantee upon acceptance of an Option. An Option shall be deemed to
have been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of
the Option duly signed by the Eligible Participant together with the said
consideration of HK$1.00 is received by the Company.

Any offer of the grant of an Option may be accepted in respect of less
than the number of Shares in respect of which it is offered provided that
it is accepted in such number of Shares as represents a board lot for
the time being for the purpose of trading on the Stock Exchange or an
integral multiple thereof.

Exercise of Options and Price of Shares

An Option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee giving
notice in writing to the Company stating that the Option is thereby
exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which it is exercised.
Each such notice must be accompanied by a remittance for the full
amount of the subscription price for the Shares in respect of which the
notice is given. Within twenty-one (21) days after receipt of the notice
and the remittance and, where appropriate, receipt of the certificate of
the Company’s auditors or independent financial advisers, the Company
shall allot and issue the relevant Shares to the grantee (or his legal
personal representative(s)) credited as fully paid.

Holders of the Options are not entitled to voting, dividend, transfer and
other rights of the holders of the Shares, including those arising on a
liquidation of the Company, save as otherwise provided herein or under
the relevant laws or the memorandum of association of the Company
and the Bye-laws in effect from time to time. Shares to be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of an Option will be subject to all the provisions
of the Bye-laws for the time being in force and will rank pari passu in
all respects with the existing fully paid Shares in issue on the date on
which the Option is duly exercised or, if that date falls on a day when
the register of members of the Company is closed, the first day of
the re-opening of the register of members (the “Exercise Date”) and
accordingly will entitle the holders thereof to participate in all dividends or
other distributions paid or made on or after the Exercise Date other than
any dividend or other distribution previously declared or recommended
or resolved to be paid or made if the record date therefor shall be before
the Exercise Date. A Share allotted upon the exercise of an Option
shall not carry voting rights until the name of the grantee has been duly
entered onto the register of members of the Company as the holder
thereof.
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FERETSETROZABETHEZS S
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AHBTREZ&SHE

(i) ELETRAUNZRRT - RNITRIREHNE
Rt st &) AR R E A B A A 3
B M RITRZFA HARTTERERE
‘A TRITZBRNDBEBEBRE - 15
BB B B BT HHRAR RIB {22 30% °
fid B BB 1T L 15 B BUL R BB iR e - Al
SIREF B AR B AR B 2 E M E
fl B AR i =T &R R AR -

(ii) £ E3C(5)() PR 2 48R T - H1T6E
RIBFERET SN T AEERE 2B
BRIEMA FROZESRMEE @ &5
RARRMEERSEERTIIR LR
19 2 B R e s A L 7 2% T 3% 17 sl 3% AR
19 2 BE RS 4 2 ZN A R fa E Ath BE AR A =
BIFTS R Z EARDE T &R - 75
BB AR EE A 2 B HITR
H210% ([ BIREREE]) - RIER
BT 30 (i) Kz (iv) 9 BR Pt 2 15 IR B4k
- BB E Rl o BIBEFERET S 2
16 R Ak 2 B R A 18 TN 1S PR VBT B AT
SRR o

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

4.

Exercise of Options and Price of Shares (continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the New Share Option Scheme

may be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any

event will not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the

Shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of

the Stock Exchange on the Offer Date, which must be a Business Day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown in the daily

quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five (5) Business Days

immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (i) the nominal value of the
Share on the Offer Date.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

(i)

(ii

Subject to the Listing Rules, the overall limit on the number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
Options granted and yet to be exercised under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30 per cent. of the relevant class of
Shares in issue from time to time. No Options may be granted
under the New Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company if this will result in this limit being
exceeded.

Subject to the limit mentioned in (5)() above, the maximum
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
Options to be granted at any time under the New Share Option
Scheme shall not, when aggregated with any Shares subject to
any other share option schemes of the Company involving the
issue or grant of option over Shares by the Company to, or for
the benefit of the Eligible Participants, exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of the approval of the New Share Option
Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”), unless Shareholders’
approval has been obtained pursuant to sub-paragraphs (i) and
(iv) below. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
New Share Option Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

5.

Maximum number of Shares available for issue (continued)

(iii) Subject to the limit mentioned in (5)(i) above, the Company may
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time subject to approval
of the Shareholders in general meeting, provided that the Scheme
Mandate Limit as refreshed must not exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at the date of passing the relevant resolution. Options
previously granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes
or exercised Options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the this limit. The Company must send a circular to
the Shareholders containing such information as required under
the Listing Rules.

(iv) Subject to the limit mentioned in (5)(i) above, the Company may
also seek separate approval of the Shareholders in general
meeting for granting Options beyond the Scheme Mandate Limit
provided that the Options in excess of the Scheme Mandate
Limit are granted only to Eligible Participants specifically identified
by the Company before such approval is sought. The Company
must send a circular to the Shareholders containing a generic
description of the specified Eligible Participants, the number and
terms of Options to be granted, the purpose of granting Options
to the specified Eligible Participants with an explanation as to
how the terms of the Options serve such purpose and such other
information as required under the Listing Rules.

Grant of Options to connected persons or any of their associates

Any grant of Option to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of
their respective associates, under the New Share Option Scheme must
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding an
independent non-executive Director who is the proposed grantee of the
Option). Where any grant of Options to a substantial Shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates, would result in
the Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise of all Options already
granted or to be granted (including Options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant:

(a) representing in aggregate over 0.1 per cent. of the relevant class
of Shares in issue; and
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

6.

Grant of Options to connected persons or any of their associates
(continued)

(b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,
such further grant of Options must be approved by Shareholders
of the Company.

A circular must be prepared by the Company explaining the proposed
grant, disclosing (i) the number and terms of the Options to be granted,
(i) containing a recommendation from the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive Director who is a
grantee) on whether or not to vote in favour of the proposed grant, (iii)
containing information relating to any Directors who are trustees of the
scheme or have a direct or indirect interest in the trustees, and (iv) the
information required under Rule 2.17 of the Listing Rules.

Any change in the terms of Options granted to a connected person or its
associates must be approved by Shareholders in a general meeting.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each Eligible Participant or grantee (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any twelve (12)-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Where
it is proposed that any offer is to be made to an Eligible Participant (or
where approximate, an existing grantee) which would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the twelve (12)-month period up to and including the relevant
date of grant to exceed such limit, such offer and any acceptance
thereof must be conditional upon Shareholders’ approval in general
meeting with such Eligible Participant (or where appropriate, an existing
grantee) and his, her or its associates abstaining from voting. The
Company must send a circular to the Shareholders disclosing the identity
of the Eligible Participant or grantee, the number and terms of options to
be granted (and options previously granted) to such Eligible Participant,
the information required under the Listing Rules. The number and terms
(including the subscription price) of options to be granted to such
Eligible Participant must be fixed before the date on which Shareholders’
approval is sought and the date of the Board meeting for proposing such
further grant should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

8.

10.

Time of Exercise of Options

Subject to the terms of the New Share Option Scheme, an Option may
be exercised in whole or in part at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to the grantee thereof at the
time of making an Offer provided that such period shall not exceed
the period of 10 years from the date of grant of the particular Option
but subject to the provisions for early termination but subject to early
termination of the New Share Option Scheme (the “Option Period”).

There is no specific minimum period under the New Share Option
Scheme for which an Option must be held or the performance target
which must be achieved before an Option can be exercised under the
terms of the New Share Option Scheme.

Period of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the date on which the New Share Option
Scheme become unconditional, after which no further Options will
be issued, and thereafter for so long as there are outstanding any
unexercised Options granted pursuant thereto and in order to give effect
to the exercise of any such Options or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the New Share Option Scheme.

The life of the New Share Option Scheme
The New Share Option Scheme will remain in force until 29 August 2023,

subject to approval by shareholders to adopt the New Share Option
Scheme at the annual general meeting.
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